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Chairman’s Statement
EEHE

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Eagle
Ride Investment Holdings Limited (“Eagle Ride” or the
“Company”), I am pleased to present the annual report of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for
the year ended 31 December 2017.

During the year under review, the global economy was full of
challenges and uncertainties. However, the overall
performance of the invested projects of the Company was
improved. Such improvement was mainly attributable to the
increase in unrealised gain on unlisted equity investment and
the decrease in unrealised loss on listed equity investment.
The invested projects of the Company included (1) E-Com
Holdings Pte. Ltd., a company principally engaging in the
provision of Chinese e-learning platforms. Chinese e-learning
platforms are available in most of the primary schools in
Singapore and its coverage is gradually expanding into other
Asian regions and the rest of the world. It is considered as the
most effective Chinese learning platform and medium. This
company was profit-making this year and its future was
prospective; and (2) the listed equity investment held by the
Company. The Company sought improvement with stability
and developed substainably. During the year, the Company
completed the placing of 185,500,000 new ordinary shares
with the net proceeds of the placing was in the amount of
approximately HK$45.4 million, proving investor’s confidence

in the Company.

Looking forward, the investment market is expected to remain
challenging in 2018. The Company will continue to adopt and
maintain a prudent investment approach to capture attractive
investment opportunities as and when they arise. It will also

strives to bring the maximum returns for all the shareholders.
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Chairman’s Statement
R

Finally, T would like to take this opportunity to express my
sincere gratitude to the shareholders, management staff and
business partners of the Company for their unremitting
dedications. The management will, as always, endeavour to
deliver the best results possible so as to reward the

shareholders for their support to Eagle Ride.

TUNG Shu Sun

Chairman

29 March 2018
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B i e g AT

Eagle Ride Investment Holdings Limited is an investment
holding company. The Company’s investment instruments are
to be made in the form of equity securities or equity related
securities or debt-related instruments in listed and unlisted
companies engaged in, but not limited to, the oil sector. The
investments normally are to be made in enterprises which are
established within their respective fields. The Company may
also seek to identify investments where there are synergies

with other investee entities.

Year 2017 was a year full of challenges and uncertainties. The
global financial markets were volatile and tainted by economic
and political uncertainties arising from Unites States Federal
Reserve’s decision to hike its federal funds rate gradually and
protectionism advocated by the United States. Increase in
interest rate may negatively affect business profits, stock prices
and consumer spending. On the other hand, the rising
protectionist sentiment from the United States may negatively
affect Mainland China’s economy. All these contributed to
cautious sentiment among investors, and created a challenging

market environment for the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company
continued its investments in both listed and unlisted equity
securities and other related financial assets. As at 31 December
2017, the Company’s investment portfolio was diversified and
across different business sectors including education and

investment in securities.

BUSINESS REVIEW
At the end of the reporting period, the Company’s investment

performances were as follows:

1. net unrealised loss arising on revaluation of financial
assets designated as held for trading was approximately
HK$3,487,000

2. net unrealised gain arising on revaluation of financial
assets designated as at FVTPL was approximately
HK$3,332,000; and

3. loss on disposal of a subsidiary, which held one of the
unlisted equity investments, was approximately
HK$4,408,000
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Management Discussion and Analysis

o B o s S 40 A

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Company derived approximately HK$718,000 revenue as
bond interest income for the year 2017 (2016: HK$350,000).
The net loss attributable to owners of the Company was
approximately HK$45,249,000, a reduction of approximately
HK$31,567,000 from the loss of approximately HK$76,815,000

in the last financial year.

The improvement in loss position was mainly attributable to
decrease in loss on disposal of listed equity investment of
approximately HK$6,619,000, decrease in unrealised loss on
listed equity investments of approximately HK$24,539,000 and
increase in unrealised gain on unlisted equity investment of
approximately HK$8,790,000, but was partly offset by net
negative contribution arising from subsidiary disposals on a

year-by-year basis of approximately HK$6,633,000.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has cash and cash
equivalents of approximately HK$30,967,000 (2016:
approximately HK$27,070,000). The Company is fully aware of
the financial position and financial performance of the
reporting period. The Board are of the opinion that the
Company will have sufficient financial resources to meet its
financial obligations as they fall due for at least the next twelve
months from the end of the reporting period, after taking into

consideration of the following:

1. Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the Group
entered into a legally binding share placing agreement
with placing agents for the issue and allotment of a
maximum of 1,000,000,000 shares at the price of HK$0.3
per share on a best effort basis. Reference is made to the
announcement of the Company dated 28 March 2018 in
relation to the placing of new shares of the Company

under special mandate;
2. In January 2018, the borrower of an unsecured loan of

HK$10,000,000 agreed to extend the due date to January
2019;
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In January 2018, the Company signed an extension
agreement with a corporate bondholder to extend the
maturity date of corporate bond at the principal amount
of HK$10,000,000 from January 2018 to January 2020 and
the interest rate will revised from 5% per annum to 6%

per annum will effective date from 29 January 2018; and

Mr. Hu Haisong the non-executive director and ultimate
controlling shareholder of the Company, has confirmed
in writing that despite the term for the loans due to him
is within twelve months, he will not demand repayment
of the loans until the Group is financially viable to make
the repayment and he will provide continuous financial

support to the Group to meet its financial obligations.

The directors of the Company have carried out a detailed

Management Discussion and Analysis
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review of the cash flow forecast of the Group for the next
twelve months from the reporting date taking into account the
impact of the above measures, the directors of the Company

believe that the Group will have sufficient cash resources to

A A S H A

satisfy its future working capital and other financing

requirements.

DIVIDENDS i 8

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final

dividend for the current year (2016: HK$niD). — N FHTT)
During the year, there were no bonus shares issued (2016: nil). 4 /A » MEMEEEAT AL (
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Management Discussion and Analysis

o B o s S 40 A

GEARING RATIO
The gearing ratio (total borrowings/total assets) as at 31
December 2017 was 96.56% (2016: 97.01%).

The Group’s capital management objectives are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders, to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce
the cost of capital and to support the Group’s stability and
growth.

The directors of the Company actively and regularly reviews
and manages the Group’s capital structure, taking into
consideration the future capital requirements of the Group, to
ensure optimal shareholders’ returns. The Group manages the
capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of
changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of
the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may issue new shares, raise new debts or

sells assets to reduce debt.

LITIGATION
No outstanding litigation as at 31 December 2017 was noted
(2016: niD).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2017, the Company did not have any
contingent liabilities (2016: nil).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, no margin facility (2016:
nil) from a regulated securities broker was granted to the
Group under which financial assets at FVTPL of approximately
HK$466,000 (2016: approximately HK$3,952,000) were treated
as collateral for the facilities granted. No margin facility has
been utilised by the Group at 31 December 2017 (2016: nil).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B i e g AT

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Company has foreign currency investments in financial
assets, which expose it to foreign currency risk. The Group is
mainly exposed to the effects of fluctuation of the US$ and the
S$. As the HK$ is pegged to the US$, the Group considers the
risk of movements in exchange rates between the HK$ and the
US$ to be insignificant. Accordingly, their fluctuation is
excluded from the sensitivity analysis. If the exchange rate of
HK$ against S$ has been increased/decreased by 5% (2016:
5%), the Group’s loss for the year would have been decreased/
increased by approximately HK$921,000 (2016: approximately
HK$701,000).

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2017 the Group had 13 (2016: 13)
employees. The total employees remuneration was
approximately HK$5,803,000 (2016: approximately
HK$6,221,000) for the current financial year. The Group’s
emolument policies are formulated based on the performance

of individual employees and is reviewed regularly every year.

OUTLOOK

Looking forward into the rest of 2018, the operating
environment for financial markets is expected to remain
challenging. Despite a recent strong economic upswing across
the world had set a favourable backdrop that helped boost
investment sentiment in capital markets, many economic and
political uncertainties remain. Capital markets in 2018 are
likely to be volatile. The Company will continue to adopt and
maintain a prudent investment approach to capture attractive
investment opportunities as and when they arise. The
Company will continue fully leveraging its strong market
analytical capability and carefully identify the market trend
through a flexible investment strategy to bring maximum

returns for all the shareholders.
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Biographical Details of Directors
R

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. CHAN Yiu Pun, Clement, aged 60, was appointed an
Executive Director of the Company on 1 November, 2013. He
was an Executive Director and Authorised Representative of
Opes Asia Development Limited, a company listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange with stock code: 810, from
September 2012 to October 2013. Mr. Chan had over 20 years
of experience in the financial industry, including professional
management of investments on behalf of third party investors
through his role in Opes Asia Development Limited and
experiences as responsible officers for type 4 (advising on
securities) and type 9 (asset management) regulated activities
under the Securities and Future Ordinance (“SFO”) for a
number of corporations including China International Capital
Limited from May 2007 to January 2013 and Wealth Assets
Management Limited from November 2005 to August 2012. In
addition, Mr. Chan also served as a responsible officer for type
4 (advising on securities) regulated activity under the SFO of
Gain Miles Financial Planning Consultants Limited from
February 2005 to August 2006. Mr. Chan also worked in AIG
Financial Advisor Services, Limited (now known as AIA Wealth
Management Company Limited) from May 2000 to May 2003
with last position as director and head of the team of
wholesalers and Keen Shing Investment Consultants Ltd (now
known as China International Capital Limited) from June 1996

to March 2000 with last position as investment director.

He is a member of The Institute of Financial Planners of Hong
Kong Limited and also a Certified Financial Planner in Hong
Kong. Mr. Chan obtained a higher diploma in accountancy
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as the
Polytechnic University of Hong Kong) in November 1980 and
a master of science in corporate governance & directorship

from the Hong Kong Baptist University in November 2008.
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Biographical Details of Directors
R R

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. HU Haisong, aged 50, was appointed a Non-executive
Director of the Company on 1 November, 2013. He has a
strong track record in pursuing crossborder business
opportunities primarily in the energy and resources industry.
Mr. Hu has substantial experience in business management
and management and supervision of investment projects in
various sectors and industries, including oil and gas related
industry, trading of commodities and real estates. Mr. Hu is
currently the chairman and director of each of APAC
Investment Holdings Limited (‘APAC”) and Eagle Ride
Investments Limited (“Eagle Ride Investments”). APAC is
principally engaged in investment holding focusing on the
energy sector and high growth private investments and Eagle
Ride Investments is an investment holding company. Mr. Hu is
also a director of Bluesea Energy Holdings Limited, a limited
liability company incorporated in Hong Kong and is principally
engaged in providing consultancy services in the oil and gas
related industry and the trading of petroleum related products,
including crude oil and fuel oil. Mr. Hu obtained a Doctor
degree in Business Administration honoris causa by Dubna
International University for Nature, Society and Man in June
2013.

Mr. TUNG Shu Sun, aged 70, was appointed a Non-executive
Director of the Company on 1 November, 2013. He used to be
the chief executive officer of APAC. APAC is principally
engaged in investment holding focusing on the energy sector
and high growth private investments. Mr. Tung was the
executive director and the executive deputy managing director
of COSCO International Holdings Limited, a company listed on
the Stock Exchange with stock code: 517, from December
1997 to July 2003 and has extensive experiences in corporate
management, management of investment projects as well as
management and mergers and acquisitions of listed companies.
Mr. Tung joined China Ocean Shipping (Group) Company
since 1968 and served in sea transportation, shipbuilding,
container transportation, external affairs and administrative

management as well as real estate and infrastructure.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. GUI Shengyue, aged 54, was appointed an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company on 1 November, 2013.
He is currently the Chief Executive Officer of Geely
Automobile Holdings Limited (“Geely”), a company listed on
the Stock Exchange with stock code: 175, since February 2000,
and is responsible for the overall administration, risk
management and compliance of Geely. Mr. Gui joined Geely
in June 2005.

Mr. WANG Xianzhang, aged 75, was appointed an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on 1
November, 2013. He was the chairman of the board and
president of China Life Insurance Company Limited, a
company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code: 2628
since its listing in 2003 to June 2005. Mr. Wang also served as
president of China Life Insurance (Group) Company and
chairman of China Life Asset Management Company Limited.
In addition, Mr. Wang was also appointed as the directors of a
number of listed companies in Hong Kong, including the
executive director of Pacific Century Insurance Holdings
Limited previously listed on the Stock Exchange from June
1999 to November 2000, and re—designated to non-executive
director from November 2000 to March 2006 and independent
non-executive director from March 2006 to June 2007.
Mr. Wang was also the independent non-executive director of
Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Stock Exchange with stock code: 392, from April 1997 to
March 2008. Currently, Mr. Wang serves as the independent
non-executive director of Sino Energy International Holdings

Group Limited.
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Mr. Vichai PHAISALAKANI, (alias Mr. Andy HUNG),
aged 69, was appointed an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company on 1 November, 2013.
Mr. Phaisalakani graduated from Minnesota State University at
Mankato, Minnesota, the United States of America and is a
Chartered Professional Accountant in Canada as well as a
member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He has worked for an international accounting
firm for 11 years and has extensive experience in finance and
corporate management with major electronics and garments
corporations. Mr. Phaisalakani was the executive director and
chief financial officer of Willas—Array Electronics (Holdings)
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Singapore
Exchange Limited as well as the Main Board of the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange, until his retirement in June 2013. He had also
served as a senior consultant of Walker Group Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange, until September 2015. Mr. Phaisalakani
is currently the Chief Financial Officer of ATAL Engineering
Limited. He also serves as an independent non—executive
director of Victory City International Holdings Limited, a
company listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange.
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The Directors submit their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2017 (the “Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. During
the Year, the Group is principally engaged in the investments
in the securities of listed and unlisted companies and other

related financial assets.

The Company’s investment instruments will be made in the
form of equity securities or equity-related securities or debt-
related instruments in listed and unlisted companies engaged
in, including but not limited to other industries, the oil sector.
The investments will normally be made in enterprises which
are established in their respective fields. The Company may
also seek to identify investments where there is a certain

degree of synergy with other investee entities.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year under
review and a discussion on the Group’s future development
are set out in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 4 to 5 of this
report and the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages

6 to 10. These discussions form part of this director’s report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income on page 59.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the Year.

FURNITURE, FIXTURES AND EQUIPMENT
Details of the movements in the furniture, fixtures and
equipment of the Group during the Year are set out in note 18

to the consolidated financial statements.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND SHARE CAPITAL
On 3 August 2017, the Company completed the placing of
185,500,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.0125 each through a
placing agent to not less than six independent professional
investors at a price of HK$0.25 per placing share. The net
proceeds of the placing was in the amount of approximately
HK$45.4 million, which represented a net price of HK$0.245
per placing share and the entire net proceeds from the placing
would be utilised for general working capital and/or
investment of the Group as and when opportunities arise.
Details of the placing were disclosed in the announcements of
the Company dated 7 July 2017 and 3 August 2017.

The net proceeds from the placing was used as general

working capital of the Group during the Year.

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
during the Year are set out in note 25 to the consolidated

financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company
during the Year are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and note 34(b) to the consolidated financial

statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

A substantial portion of the Group’s income is derived from
the Group’s investments and bank deposits and thus the
disclosure of information regarding customers would not be
meaningful. The Group has no major suppliers which require

disclosure.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES
During the Year, the Company did not purchase, sell or

redeem any of the Company’s own securities.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the Year and up to the

date of this report are:

Executive Director:
Mr. CHAN Yiu Pun, Clement

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. HU Haisong
Mr. TUNG Shu Sun, Chairman

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. GUI Shengyue

Mr. WANG Xianzhang

Mr. Vichai PHAISALAKANI

Pursuant to Article 88(1) of the Articles of Association of the
Company, Mr. Chan Yiu Pun, Clement and Mr. Tung Shu Sun
shall retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company, and being eligible, offer

themselves for re-election of Directors of the Company.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received annual written confirmations from
each of its independent non-executive Directors in respect of
their independence during the year and all of them are still

being considered to be independent.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS

As at 31 December 2017, the following persons (other than the
Directors of the Company) had interest or short positions in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to Section 336 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFO”):

F R R Hofth N 2 B AR IR A

B F—-LEF A= —H P AL O
NEIE R RO BRA AN mAR SRR IR MR
et (T 27 B I B W ) ) 57 336 M 7
2 B R0 M BT AT Bk 2 A 2w B A K A B M
2 R AR BOR A

Approximate

percentage of

the total

Number of issued share

issued shares capital of the

Name Capacity Nature of interests held Company
AR Z

i  CEITRAER

H =47} HE i R B JBe by ¥ H ZBEH b

Eagle Ride Investments Limited*  Beneficial owner Corporate 966,638,573 53.59
Ha A A 2l

* Eagle Ride Investments Limited, a company incorporated in the British ~ * Eagle Ride Investments Limited %5 — ] it 2% J& J&

Virgin Islands with limited liability, wholly-owned by APAC Investment
Holdings Limited (“APAC”), a company incorporated in Samoa and
beneficially owned as to approximately 94.19% by Mr. Hu Haisong (“Mr.
Hu"), the Non-executive Director of the Company, and approximately
5.81% by the Investors (“Investors”) (whose interests are held on trust
by Mr. Hu). The investors, namely (i) Mr. Wang Haibin, a resident of the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and engages in investment
business in the PRC; and (ii) RB International Investments Asia Limited

is principally engaged in financial services.

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified
by any other person (other than the Directors of the Company)
who had an interest or a short position in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336
of the SFO as at 31 December 2017.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Company’s
business to which the Company or its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a Director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of

the Year or at any time during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the
employer within 1 year without payment of compensation,

other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS

As at 31 December 2017, the Directors of the Company and
their associates had the following interests and short positions
in any shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to
be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies (“Model Code”).

Long positions
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BRAN) Z M5 45 4 o
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WA

Number of % of issued

Name Capacity and nature  Note shares Total share capital
C#IT

s S Rtk E P 7t Jie oy B H el BAHES R

Mr. HU Haisong Interest of corporation D 966,638,573 966,638,573 53.59

WA B 1% B HE 45

Note: It :

D 966,638,573 shares are held through Eagle Ride Investments Limited
(“Eagle Ride Investments”). Eagle Ride Investments is an investment
holding company, a wholly-owned subsidiary of APAC Investment
Holdings Limited, which is beneficially owned as to approximately
94.19% interests by Mr. Hu Haisong and approximately 5.81% by other

investors.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company or their
associates had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURE

At no time during the Year was the Company or its
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate. Save as disclosed under the heading
“Share Option Scheme” below, the Company did not grant any
right to subscribe for the shares in the Company to any
Directors of the Company or their respective spouse or

children under the age of 18 during the Year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A new share option scheme was adopted by members of the
Company on 22 May 2015 (the “Scheme”). The purpose of the
Scheme is to reward and provide incentives to eligible
participants and encourage them to contribute to the Group.
Under the Scheme, the Board of the Company may at their
discretion, at any time following the date of the adoption of
the Scheme but before the tenth anniversary of that date, grant
share options to eligible participants, including directors of the
Company and its subsidiaries and any other persons including
consultants, advisors, agents, customers, suppliers, etc. to

subscribe for shares in the Company.
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The exercise price of share options is the highest of the
nominal value of the shares, the closing price of the shares on
the Stock Exchange on the date of offer of the grant and the
average closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of offer
of the grant. An offer of an option shall be deemed to have
been accepted within 30 days from the date of offer upon
acceptance of the option duly signed by the grantee together
with a remittance of HK$1. The maximum number of securities
available for issue under the Scheme shall not exceed 10% of
the issued capital of the Company. The maximum entitlement
of each grantee in any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the
ordinary shares in issue of the Company. The option period
will not be more than ten years from the date of grant of the
option and the Board of the Company may at its discretion
determine the minimum period for which the option has to be
held or other restriction before the exercise of the subscription

right attaching thereon.

As at the date of the adoption of the Scheme, the maximum
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Scheme or any other share
option schemes adopted by the Company is 150,005,878
shares. Further details of the 2015 Share Option Scheme are
set out in the circular of the Company dated 21 April 2015.

During the Year, no options granted, exercised or cancelled
under the 2015 Share Option Scheme.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS
Details of pledge of assets are set out in note 30 to the

consolidated financial statements.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME
Details of the retirement benefits scheme are set out in note 31

to the consolidated financial statements.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
The following are connected transactions occurred during the

Year.

1. Investment Management Agreement
The Company entered into a new investment
management agreement (the “New Investment
Management Agreement”) with Fortune Legendary
Asset Management Limited (Formerly known as “Blue
Star Asset Management Limited”) (“Fortune
Legendary“), on 8 December 2016 to renew the
appointment of Fortune Legendary as the investment
manager of the Company. Under the New Investment
Management Agreement, the investment manager agreed
to provide investment management services to the
Company for a period of three years commencing from 1

January 2017.

On 5 July 2017, the Company entered into a
supplemental agreement (the “Supplemental
Agreement”) with Fortune Legendary to revise the
remuneration payable to Fortune Legendary and the
annual caps (the “Annual Caps”) thereunder the New
Investment Management Agreement. Fortune Legendary,
as the investment manager of the Company, was a
connected person of the Company pursuant to Rule
14A.08 of the Listing Rules, as such, the transaction
contemplated by the Supplemental Agreement constituted
a continuing connected transaction of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. As the applicable
percentage ratios, on an annual basis, were more than
25% but the proposed aggregate annual caps were less
than HK$10,000,000, the transaction contemplated under
the Supplemental Agreement was subject to reporting,
announcement, circular, shareholders’ approval and
annual review requirement under Chapter 14A of the

Listing Rules.
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Eagle Ride Investments Limited was holding an aggregate
of approximately 53.59% of the issued share capital of
the Company and Eagle Ride Investments Limited issued
a written shareholder’s approval certificate to approve the
Supplemental Agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereunder (including the Annual Caps).
The Company applied for a waiver from the strict
compliance with general meeting requirement pursuant
to Rule 14A.37 of the Listing Rules and a waiver was
granted by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and
accordingly, no extraordinary general meeting was
convened by the Company to approve the Supplemental

Agreement.

An Independent Board Committee of the Company
comprising the independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Gui Shengyue, Mr. Wang Xianzhang and
Mr. Vichai Phaisalakani was formed to advise the
Shareholders as to whether the Supplemental Agreement
and the transactions contemplated thereunder (including
the Annual Caps) was on normal commercial terms, fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the Company and
the shareholders as a whole, after taking into account the
recommendations of the independent financial adviser. In
this connection, an Independent Financial Adviser was
appointed to advise the Independent Board Committee
and the Shareholders in regard of the Supplemental

Agreement.

The Independent Board Committee considered that the
Supplemental Agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereunder (including the Annual Caps)
were on normal commercial terms, and in the best
interest of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.
The Independent Board Committee also considered that
the Supplemental Agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereunder (including the Annual Caps)
were fair and reasonable so far as the shareholders were

concerned.
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A circular containing, among others, further details of the
Supplemental Agreement, the advice of the Independent
Financial Adviser to the Independent Board Committee
and the shareholders and the recommendation of the
Independent Board Committee, was despatched to the
shareholders on 15 August 2017.

Details of the continuing connected transaction were
disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated
5 July 2017 and 14 July 2017 respectively and circular of
the Company dated 15 August 2017.

Blue Star Asset Management Limited changed its
company name to Fortune Legendary on 12 September
2017.
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Report of the Directors
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2. Confirmation from Auditor and Independent
Non-Executive Directors
The Company’s auditor and independent non-executive
Directors have reviewed the continuing connected
transactions of the Company and its subsidiaries for the

Year, and confirm that:

(a) the transactions entered into by the Group for the
Year were duly approved by the Board of the

Company; and

(b) the aggregated amount of the continuing connected
transactions for the Year does not exceed the annual
cap disclosed in the circular of the Company dated
15 August 2017.

The independent non-executive Directors further confirm
that:

(¢) the transactions were entered into by the Group in

the ordinary and usual course of its business;

(d) the transactions were entered into by the Group on

normal commercial terms; and

(e) the transactions were entered into by the Group on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the

interests of the members of the Group.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is public available and within
the knowledge of the Directors, the Company maintained the
percentage prescribed for public float requirement under the
Listing Rules at the date of this report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee, currently comprising one non-executive
Director and two independent non-executive Directors, has
reviewed the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group and has discussed the internal controls and financial
reporting matters of the Company with the management of the
Company. The audit committee has also reviewed the annual

results of the Group for the Year.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association, or the laws of Cayman
Islands, although there are no restrictions against such rights

under the laws in the Cayman Islands.

TAX RELIEF
The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available
to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Shares.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company maintained Directors’ liability insurance to
protect them from any loss to which the Directors of the
Company might be liable arising from their actual or alleged

misconduct.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2017 have been audited by HLM CPA
Limited who will retire and eligible for re-election at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The Group supports environmental protection, implements
green office practices and promotes green awareness within
the company. Such measures include the using of energy-
saving lightings and recycled paper, minimising the use of
paper, reducing energy consumption by switching off idle

lightings, computers and electrical appliances.
On behalf of the Board
TUNG Shu Sun

Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2018
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The Company is committed to maintain statutory and
regulatory standards and adherence to the principles of
corporate governance with emphasis on transparency,
independence, accountability and responsibility. The Company
reviews its corporate governance practices from time to time
in order to meet the expectations of shareholders and to fulfill

its commitment to excellence in corporate governance.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on
the principles, code provisions and recommended best
practices as set out in the Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report (the “CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”). During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Company has complied with all code provisions, and where
applicable, certain recommended best practices set out in the
CG Code except for code provision A.6.7 and E.1.2 of the CG

Code as explained below.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

The Company had adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”), as contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules, as
the required standard for the Directors of the Company to deal
in the securities of the Company. Upon enquiry by the
Company, all Directors of the Company have confirmed that
they have complied with the required standards set out in the
Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2017.
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The Board

Composition and Appointment

As at 31 December 2017, the Board of the Company comprises
six Directors, consisting of Mr. Chan Yiu Pun, Clement as
executive Director; Mr. Hu Haisong and Mr. Tung Shu Sun
(Chairman) as non-executive Directors; and Mr. Gui Shengyue,
Mr. Wang Xianzhang and Mr. Vichai Phaisalakani as
independent non-executive Directors. Pursuant to the Listing
Rules, each independent non-executive Director had given an

annual confirmation of his independence to the Company.

Biographical details of the Directors as at the date of this
report are set out in the section headed ‘Biographical Details
of Directors’ of this annual report. Given the composition of
the Board and the skills, knowledge and expertise of the
Directors, the Board believes that it is appropriately structured
to provide sufficient checks and balances to protect the
interest of the Group and the shareholders. The Board will
review its composition regularly to ensure that it has the
appropriate balance of expertise, skills and experience to

continue to effectively oversee the business of the Company.

The Board is responsible for the management of and
formulation in the Group’s overall investment strategies and
guidelines in accordance with the investment objective and
policies of the Group. The Board is also responsible for
performing the corporate governance duties set out in code
provision D.3.1 of the CG Code which included developing
and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices and
corporate governance, reviewing the training and continuous
professional development of Directors, reviewing the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements, developing, reviewing the code
of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees and Directors, and reviewing the Company’s
compliance with the code provision in the CG Code and

disclosure in this report.
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During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Board has
established Board committees, namely, audit committee,
remuneration committee, nomination committee and
investment committee, and has delegated to these Board
committees various responsibilities as set out in their
respective terms of reference. The Board is accountable to the
members of the Company for the performance and activities
of the Group.

All Directors, including non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors, were appointed for a
specific term of one year or three years and subject to
re-election. One-third of the Directors of the Company (both
executive and non-executive) are subject to retirement by
rotation at an annual general meeting at least once every three
years in accordance with the Articles of Association of the

Company.

The Company has complied with Rule 3.10(1), Rule 3.10(2),
and Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules. The Company has
appointed three independent non-executive Directors, one of
whom possess the requisite appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise. The Board confirmed that the independence and
eligibility of the independent non-executive Directors are in

compliance with the relevant requirements of the Listing Rules.

Under the code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, independent
non-executive Directors and other non-executive Directors
should attend general meetings and develop a balanced
understanding of the views of members. All Directors are
encouraged to attend the Company’s general meetings and
each Director makes every effort to attend. However, two
independent non-executive Directors and two non-executive
Directors were unable to attend the annual general meeting

held on 2 June 2017 due to other personal engagements.

Under the code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the chairman
of the Board should attend the annual general meeting of the
Company. Mr. Tung Shu Sun was on business trip outside
Hong Kong and Mr. Chan Yiu Pun, Clement, the Executive
Director of the Company, was entrusted to preside as the
chairman of the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 2 June 2017.
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The Board has effectively overseen and monitored the
business activities, operational and financial performance of
the Group, ensured a proper internal control system is in place
to enable risks to be assessed and managed and the decisions
were made in the best interests of the Company. The Board
holds meetings from time to time whenever necessary and the
Board considered that sufficient notice of Board meetings is
given to Directors. The Company Secretary records and
maintains the minutes of the Board meetings for inspection by

Directors.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2017, the Board
convened a total of 14 meetings and had 8 resolutions in
writing in lieu of board meeting, performing its duties in
considering, inter alia, interim and final results and other
matters pursuant to the provisions of the Articles of Association
of the Company. Real-time teleconference system was adopted

at meeting to increase the attendance rate.

Directors’ attendance at the meetings during the financial year

ended 31 December 2017 are as follows:
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R GREEERNT

Annual
Board General
Meetings Meetings
HHFgER BRESERE
Name of Director Title Attended/Held
HRA Tk 187 B BT R
CHAN Yiu Pun, Clement Executive Director 14/14 1/1
PR A WATER
HU Haisong Non-executive Director 13/14 0/1
9 A FHATHESE
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Annual
Board General
Meetings Meetings
HEHREER BRAAFERG
Name of Director Title Attended/Held
HREEH Ik 187 B BT R
TUNG Shu Sun Chairman, Non-executive Director 14/14 0/1
AT E - R HATHE S
GUI Shengyue Independent Non-executive Director 4/14 0/1
M WL AT
WANG Xianzhang Independent Non-executive Director 4/14 0/1
ELS: ¥ WAL E YT SR
Vichai PHAISALAKANI Independent Non-executive Director 4/14 1/1
REA WAL E AT S

Every Board member has full access to the advice and services — H:-{y & & & i B Y #E AR E 22
of the Company Secretary with a view to ensuring that Board — sk KRS > IFE(R & S & 2 7 LA 8
procedures, and all applicable rules and regulations are  F 8 HI KB e #1528 47 > 1% 55 58 n] 2 1) JE 15
followed and they are also entitled to have full access to Board 2 & 2 SC4 K AH B &R > SR 0% %5 68 40 1F

papers and related materials so that they are able to make an  FlEHE > I B A7 1 45 2 Bk 35 M AT -

informed decision and to discharge their duties and

responsibilities.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer F R AT B AR IR

Mr. Tung Shu Sun was the Chairman of the Company and the S 4F B (A » 85 48 50 AR AT A8 =) £ 7 -
Company has no Chief Executive Officer during the Year. T AR 7] Sl A7 B A 2K,
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DIRECTORS’ PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
Directors’ training is an ongoing process. All Directors are
encouraged to attend relevant training courses at the
Company’s expenses. They are requested to provide their

respective training records to the Company Secretary.

The Company has complied with the code provision A.6.5 of
the CG Code on Directors’ training. A record of the training
received by the respective Directors are kept and updated by

the Company Secretary.

HEHRZHEHERE

RN IR AUR TR o 2 B0 S M SR
Ji R B S R T AR % AR o (S
JRUIw) 5 W) RS B LA B B ARk

A E B S I T R SRR T 2
ST UG SO AL6. 51 © 4% T 5 P 252 2 1
RO Bk A2 B R OR A B B R o

Type(s) of continuous professional

Directors development activities
#HH AR R RN
CHAN Yiu Pun, Clement A B
ok e A
HU Haisong B
] 9 A
TUNG Shu Sun A B
A BT
GUI Shengyue B
ERER)
WANG Xianzhang B
B &
Vichai PHAISALAKANI B

REATA

A: Attending training sessions conducted by the Company

B: Reading articles, journal, newspapers and/or other materials provided
by the Company

All Directors understand the importance of continuous
professional development and are committed to participate
any suitable training to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills.

Ar R R B B IR

B: BISEAC O SR AR A SO T R KA
BB

R EHNB AT R E R IR
it 25 BT D0 5 1) B 9 R > DA 7 B S H
845 R0k B 4 FiE
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The management provides such explanation and information
to the Board and reports regularly to the Board on financial
position and prospects of the business of the Group so as to
enable the Board to make an informed assessment of the
financial and other information put before the Board for

approval.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing
the consolidated financial statements of the Group. The
Directors’ responsibilities in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements and the auditor’s
responsibilities are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report.
The responsibility of the external auditor is to form an
independent opinion, based on their audit, on those
consolidated financial statements prepared by the Board and
to report their opinion to the members of the Company. A
statement by auditor about their reporting responsibility is set

out in the Independent Auditor’s Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for overseeing the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems and
reviewing their effectiveness. The Audit Committee assists the
Board in fulfilling its corporate governance roles in the
Group’s financial, operational, compliance, risk management
and internal controls, and the resourcing of the finance and

internal audit functions.
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The Company has established an organizational structure with
defined levels of responsibility and reporting procedures.
Appropriate policies and controls have been designed and
established to ensure that assets are safeguarded against
improper use or disposal, relevant rules and regulations are
adhered to and complied with, reliable financial and
accounting records are maintained in accordance with relevant
accounting standards and regulatory reporting requirements,
and key risks that may impact on the Group’s performance are
appropriately identified and managed. The Company has
adopted its risk management policy and the Group’s internal
control system is designed to provide reasonable assurance
against material misstatement or loss and to manage and
eliminate risks of failure in operational systems and fulfillment
of business objective. The system includes a defined
management structure with segregation of duties and a cash
management system such as monthly reconciliation of bank

accounts.

The Company has appointed an independent professional as
an internal audit and to report directly to the Audit Committee
on a semi-annually basis. During the Year, Internal Audit
conducted selective reviews of the effectiveness of the systems
of risk management and internal controls of the Group over
financial, operational and compliance controls with emphasis
on information technology and security, data privacy and
protection, business continuity management and procurement.
These results were reported to the Audit Committee, which
then reviewed and reported the same to the Board. The Audit
Committee and the Board were not aware of any areas of
concern that would have a material impact on the Group’s
financial position or results of operations and considered the
risk management and internal control systems to be generally
effective and adequate including the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programs and
budget of the accounting, internal audit and financial reporting

functions.
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Based on the respective assessments made by management,
the Audit Committee considered that for the year ended
31 December 2017:

e The risk management and internal control systems, as
well as accounting systems of the Group were in place
and functioning effectively and adequately, and were
designed to provide reasonable assurance that material
assets were protected, business risks attributable to the
Group were identified and monitored, material
transactions were executed in accordance with
management’s authorisation and the financial statements

were reliable for publication.
e There was an ongoing process in place for identifying,

evaluating and managing the significant risks faced by

the Group.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee comprises three members and is
currently consisting of two independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Wang Xianzhang and Mr. Vichai
Phaisalakani, and one non-executive Director, namely, Mr. Hu
Haisong. Mr. Wang Xianzhang is the chairman of the

nomination committee.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2017, there was
one nomination committee meeting. The attendance of each of

the members at such meeting are as follows:—

RAZHG

R4 % B ih =% B AL B AL 45 9 44
J L FFBUAT (R E T AR e AR S
) R— A R ATE S (g EE) - £
ERECAERRATETEN-

e E _F—LE+T A =+—H I
SEFEN RAR BT —KIESR T E G G5
BAWERZEGRZBFEBERINT : -

Name of Member Title Attended/Held
B B ¥4 T3 81 W BT IR
HU Haisong Non-executive Director 1/1
[ERETIN FHITESF

WANG Xianzhang Independent Non-executive Director 1/1
FEE WA EMATE S

Vichai PHAISALAKANI Independent Non-executive Director 1/1
REHAN WAL F AT E S
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The Board adopted the terms of reference of the nomination
committee which is available on the respective websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company. The nomination committee
is mainly responsible for the following functions: reviewing
the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board and making
recommendations to the Board on any proposed changes to
the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy,
identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and assessing the independence of independent
non-executive Directors. The nomination committee also
considered the past performance, qualification, general market
conditions and the Articles of Association of the Company in
selecting and recommending candidates for the directorship.
During the financial year ended 31 December 2017, the
nomination committee has discussed and reviewed the Board
composition and appointment, retirement and reelection of

Directors.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has a remuneration committee for determining
the remuneration of Directors. The remuneration committee
has adopted the model that it will determine, with delegated
responsibility, the remuneration package of individual
executive Directors and senior management. The remuneration
committee comprises three members and is currently
consisting of two independent non-executive Directors,
namely, Mr. Wang Xianzhang and Mr. Vichai Phaisalakani, and
one non-executive Director, namely, Mr. Hu Haisong. Mr. Wang

Xianzhang is the chairman of the remuneration committee.
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During the financial year ended 31 December 2017, there were
one remuneration committee meeting and one resolution in
writing in lieu of committee meeting to discuss remuneration
related matters. The attendance of each of the members at

such meeting are as follows:—

RERE-F—LHF+H=1+—H1E#IK
RN AR RIBRIT IR ZE B g e X
—xEHRETAREZEgg& S
AT A B EE - KA M E R ZET®RZ W
JEBWT : —

Name of Member Title Attended/Held
i B 2k Tk 181 BT
HU Haisong Non-executive Director 1/1
Y A FRATHE R

WANG Xianzhang Independent Non-executive Director 1/1
THEE WAL JE YT H

Vichai PHAISALAKANI Independent Non-executive Director 1/1
REATH WL AT E

The terms of reference of the remuneration committee are of
no less exacting terms than those stipulated in the CG Code.
The terms of reference of the remuneration committee is
available on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company. The remuneration committee is mainly
responsible for the following functions: determining the
Company’s framework or board policy for remuneration of
Directors and senior management, determining the policy and
scope of pension and compensation arrangements for
executive Directors and senior management , including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment and reviewing and approving the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the Board’s

corporate goals objectives.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2017, the
remuneration committee has reviewed the remuneration
packages of the Directors and employees of the Group with
reference to the factors including but not limited to salaries
paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities of them and considered that are fair and

reasonable.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has set up an audit committee to review the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
the audit committee has discussed the risk management,
internal controls and financial reporting matters of the Group
with the management of the Company. The audit committee
has also reviewed interim results and the annual results of the
Group for the current year. The audit committee comprises
three members and is currently consisting of two independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Vichai Phaisalakani and
Mr. Wang Xianzhang, and one non-executive Director, namely,
Mr. Hu Haisong. Mr. Vichai Phaisalakani is the chairman of the

audit committee.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2017, there were
three audit committee meetings. The attendance of each of the

members at such meetings are as follows:—

EREHE
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KB HMFEZETRZENAT

Name of Member Title Attended/Held
B ik ik 187 BT
HU Haisong Non-executive Director 2/3
1 FRATHE S

Vichai PHAISALAKANI Independent Non-executive Director 3/3
fE AT WL AT S

WANG Xianzhang Independent Non-executive Director 3/3
E & AL IEPATHE S

The terms of reference of the audit committee are of no less
exacting terms than those stipulated in the CG Code. The
terms of reference of the audit committee is available on the
respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
The audit committee is mainly responsible for the following
functions: monitoring integrity of the Company’s financial
statements, including annual report and accounts, interim and
other periodic reports, preliminary result announcements and
reviewing significant financial reporting judgments contained
in them and reviewing the effectiveness of the Group’s internal

controls and risk management systems.
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The audit committee has reviewed the auditing performance,
the risk management, the internal controls, the unaudited
consolidated interim financial statements of the Group for the
six months ended 30 June 2017 and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the financial year ended
31 December 2017.

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

The investment committee is responsible for formulating
investment policies and reviewing and determining the
investment portfolio of the Group. The investment committee
comprises four members and is currently consisting of one
executive Director, Mr. Chan Yiu Pun, Clement, one non-
executive Director, Mr. Hu Haisong, one independent non-
executive Director, Mr. Wang Xianzhang and an independent
consultant, Dr. Iraj Ershaghi. Mr. Chan Yiu Pun, Clement is the

chairman of the investment committee.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2017, there were
four investment committee meetings and three resolutions in
writing in lieu of committee meeting. The attendance of each

of the members at such meetings are as follows:—

FRZA GO FMZEERE - JJbEE- N
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Name of Member Title Attended/Held

B B ¥4 W3 181 I YRR/ ¢

CHAN Yiu Pun, Clement Executive Director 4/4

I WATESR

HU Haisong Non-executive Director 3/4

[iRGTN FHiTHEFR

WANG Xianzhang Independent Non-executive Director 4/4

TEE WL F AT ES

Iraj ERSHAGHI Independent Consultant 4/4
8 37 i
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Au Shiu Kee, the Company Secretary of the Company, has
confirmed that he has fulfilled the training requirements under
the Listing Rules for the financial year ended 31 December
2017.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the financial year ended 31 December 2017, the
remuneration payable to the Company’s external auditor in
respect of audit services and non-audit services were
approximately HK$330,000 (2016: HK$300,000) and HK$30,000
(2016: HK$30,000) respectively.

MEMBERS’ RIGHTS

Way to Convene an Extraordinary General Meeting
Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, any one or more members holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the
right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business

specified in such requisition.

Members’ Enquiries

Members should direct their questions about their
shareholdings to the Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong.
Members may at any time make a request for the Company’s
information to the extent that such information is publically
available. Members may also make enquiries to the following

contact details of the Company:

Address: Room 2206, China Resources Building,
26 Harbour Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong

Tel: +852 3901 0901

Email: info@empirialgroup.com
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Procedures and Sufficient Contact Details for Putting
Forward Proposals at Members’ Meetings

Members are welcomed to suggest proposals relating to the
operations, strategy and/or management of the Group to be
discussed at members’ meeting. Proposal shall be sent to the
Board or the Company Secretary by written requisition.
Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company,
members who wish to put forward a proposal should convene
an extraordinary general meeting by the procedures set out in

“Way to Convene an Extraordinary General Meeting” above.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Communication with Investors

The Board maintains an on-going dialogue with the
Company’s members through various channels including the
Company’s financial reports (interim and annual reports),
annual general meeting and other general meetings. Members
are encouraged to participate in general meetings or to
appoint proxies to attend and vote at the general meetings for
and on their behalf if they are unable to attend the general
meetings. The results of the voting by poll are published on
the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the

Company on a timely basis.

For both investors and other stakeholders, the Company’s
website www.eaglerideinvestment.com provides latest
information on the Group. All key information about the
Group such as the Company’s financial reports,
announcements, circular and other corporate information can

be downloaded from this website.
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The Company is an investment company and principally
engages in investments in a diversified portfolio of listed and
unlisted companies. As an investment company, the Company
does not directly participate in the production and operation
of these listed and unlisted companies. While actively seeking
to optimise its investment portfolio and maximise shareholder
return, the Company lives up to its corporate social
responsibility and strikes a balance between the interests of
stakeholders such as the shareholders and the community,

with the ultimate goal of achieving a sustainable corporation.

The Company has adopted its policy which set out guidelines
to the directors, officers and all relevant employees of the
Company to maintain an approach that integrates
environmental, social and governance (“ESG”) factors into its
investment process and business in order to maximize the
interests of the Group. The Company will take into account
ESG considerations when performing investment analysis and
decision-making processes. These assessments form an
important input for the Company in reaching a decision

whether to invest and in monitoring its investment portfolios.

This environmental, social and governance report (“ESG
Report”) has been prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide (the “ESG Guide”) as contained in Appendix
27 of the Listing Rules. The ESG Guide requires a listed
company to identify and disclose ESG information that is

material and relevant to its business.
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The initiatives of the Company in implementing environment

and social-related policies are as follows:

1) To optimize efficient use of resources in efforts to
minimize impact on the environment and natural

resources;

2) To encourage employees to be environmentally

conscientious; and
3)  To contribute to the community’s well-being.

Stakeholder engagement and materiality

In order to identify the most significant ESG aspects for the
Group to report on for this ESG report, key stakeholders such
as investors, shareholders and employees have been taken into
consideration. As the Group is principally engaged in
investments in a diversified portfolio of listed and unlisted
companies, the Group did not have any major suppliers,
therefore disclosures relating to supply chain management as

set forth in the ESG Guide is not applicable to the Group.

Stakeholders’ feedback
The Company welcomes stakeholders’ feedback on our ESG
approach and performance. Suggestions can be sent to us via

e-mail at ESG@empirialgroup.com
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A.

ENVIRONMENTAL

Emissions and Use of Resources

The Company’s operation is mainly office-based and the
Company is committed to minimising the impact of
businesses on the environment through adopting eco-
friendly measures at the office. For example, staff is
encouraged to reduce paper consumption by double-

sided printing and reusing papers printed on one side.

In terms of energy saving measures, there are a number

of good practices at office as follows:

e A mix of LED and fluorescent lights are used to

reduce energy consumption for lighting;

e Staff is reminded to switch off lights and
airconditioning in the meeting room and the

computer at the workstation when it is not in use;

*  The room temperature is maintained at 25 degrees

Celsius in summer to save energy; and

e Conference calls instead of face-to-face meetings are

arranged where possible.

The Company is dedicated to sustain implementation of
the measures above, while it will explore other

ecofriendly initiatives.

Given the nature of the Group’s business, the main
emissions and wastes produced by the Group are
primarily attributable to its use of electricity, water, paper
and gasoline. The Group does not produce any
hazardous waste in its operations. The Company believes
that its business operations have minimal direct impact
on the environment and natural resources. The Company
is not aware of any material non-compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the environment and natural resource relating
to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into
water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-

hazardous waste.
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Electricity

The Company endeavors to conserve energy by utilising
energy efficient equipment and light fixtures. Employees
are encouraged to save energy by turning off lights and
equipment when not in use.

Electricity consumed by the Group’s office in its normal
business operations is supplied by The Hongkong
Electric Co., Ltd. The electricity consumption by the
Group at its office was approximately 39,672 (2016:
42,749) kWh, producing CO, equivalent emissions of
approximately 31,341 (2016: 33,772) kg and an energy
consumption intensity of approximately 37 (2016: 40)
kWh per square meter during the year, which was mainly
attributable to the energy-saving measures adopted by
the Company in the hotter summer in 2017 leading to
lower air-conditioning consumption.

Water

There is no direct water supply to the office apart from
water uses/affluent discharges at shared facilities of the
office building for which no usage statistics are available.
Water consumption by the Group for the year involved
mainly bottled drinking water uses at its offices premises
and the Group’s business operations do not require any
other water usage. The Group’s office utilised a total of
approximately 20.6 (2016: 25.4 m?® of drinking water with
a water consumption intensity of approximately 1.87
(2016: 1.95) m?® per employee for domestic consumption
during the year.

Paper

The Company encourages employees to go paperless as
much as possible by liming print outs as well as
communicating via e-mail as opposed to fax. Employees
are also encouraged to re-use paper and conserve paper
usage by printing double-sided to the extent practicable.
The Group has not otherwise adopted any dedicated
recycling programme regarding paper uses.

During the year, the Group used a total of approximately
365 (2016: 743) kg of print paper in its normal office-
based operations and the total CO, equivalent emissions
for the paper used was approximately 1,754 (2016: 3,568)
kg.
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Gasoline

The Company encourages employees to always keep the
environment in mind when undertaking business
activities including use of public transportation to travel
to properties. Employees are encouraged to optimize

resources to help the Group minimize its impact on the

environment and natural resources.

During the year, a total of approximately 8,900 (2016:

7,672) litres of unleaded petrol was used for the motor

vehicles of the Group.

Emissions data from the vehicles used by the Group are

set out as follows:
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B.

48

SOCIAL

Employment and Labour Practices

The Company has complied with the applicable
employment-related laws and regulations currently in
force in Hong Kong. The Company does not employ
staffs who are below 18 years of age. The Company
provided such rights and benefits to its employees which
are no less than those required statutorily. No employee
is paid less than the minimum wage specified by the
Minimum Wage Ordinance (Chapter 608 of the Laws of
Hong Kong). The Company’s contributions to the defined
contribution retirement scheme it operated under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are made by each

monthly contribution day.

The Company is not aware of any material non-
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the Group relating to

prevention of child and forced labour.

Working Conditions, Health and Safety

The Company is committed to complying with the laws
relating to anti-discrimination and equal opportunities
promotion. It also strives to provide a pleasant, safe and
healthy workplace for our employees. We care for our
employees and recognize that having positive attitude

helps motivate employees at workplace.

The Company has developed a set of work safety codes
covering areas of environmental hygiene and cleanliness,
machine operation, smoking ban and fire prevention,
hazardous materials handling, arrangements in times of
typhoons and rainstorms, as well as response to
emergencies, etc. It also requires strict compliance with

these work safety codes by its employees.

The Company is not aware of any material non-
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the Group relating to
providing a safe working environment & protecting

employees from occupational hazards during the Year.
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Staff Care, Development and Training

We consider our employees an important asset of the
Company. We strive to provide a fair and respectful
working environment to our employees. In selecting our
employees, the Company considers the experience,
knowledge and background of the individual that can

contribute to the diversity and caliber of the Company.

The Company supports its staff to develop and enhance
their professional knowledge and skills to cope with the
evolving market environment and compliance level. On
top of on-the-job training, the staff is encouraged to take
external professional training to strengthen their work-
related expertise. The Company offers training program
in compliance to our directors and employees through
necessary continuous training courses. The range of
training hours varies depending on seminar, courses and
events available for the year. During the year, the
company secretary of the Company has completed more
than 15 hours of training related to the Continuing
Professional Development (CPD) requirements in order

to discharge his duties professionally.
We adopt a five-day workweek and encourage our

employees to have a good balance among health, work

and social or family activities.
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Anti-corruption

The Company upholds high standards on promoting anti-
corruption, with all its employees and directors are
required to maintain a high level of business ethics. The
Company strives to eliminate bribery and corruption
across its management and staff. To do so, all employees
are required to comply with the relevant anti-corruption
laws and guidelines so as to ensure that they carry out
their duties in good faith. The Company closely monitors
the conduct of its staff to prevent wrong-doings amongst
the Board, its senior management and its staff, such as
prohibiting transfer of benefits while considering any
company or project investment. The Audit Committee has
the overall responsibility for matters related to the

internal controls of anti-corruption.

During the reporting period, the Company had no legal
cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the

Company or its employees.

Community Investment

The Company is fully aware of the importance of
interacting with the wider community in fulfilling
corporate social responsibility. In this aspect, the
Company and its Investment Manager would explore the
possibility to identify suitable partners and support
community and environmental programmes that align

with the Company’s missions and values.

The Company believes the best way to serve the
community is to drive positive impact through our
investment portfolio. During the year, the Company
explored investment opportunities in several proposed
environmental protection projects. To create shared
values with the community and stakeholders, the
Company will continue to consider ESG factors in

selecting future investment projects.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BRI Al LA IR

C. HKEX ESG GUIDE REFERENCE

B2 B ESG #4512 % &K 5l

{9 e 55 T A

HKEx ESG Guide Subject Areas ESG Aspects Disclosure Reference
Wt 2 BT ESG 46 51 Y E 2 e & B 0 AR I e T WHENESE RS
Environmental Al.  Emissions Refer to the “Environmental” section of this ESG Report.
AR AL B FERER AR ESG ) 3R L T
A2, Use of resources
A2, BB
A3.  The environment and The office-based nature of the Company’s operations are
natural resources not considered to have significant impact on environment
A3 BRERKRER and natural resources.
AN R DORA B E B EE B R KRG AR
WRE R B
Social Employment and Bl.  Employment All matters related to compensation and dismissal,
B it labour practices Bl {EfE recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods,

equal opportunity, diversity, antidiscrimination, and other
benefits and welfare complied with the Employment
Ordinance.
A7 A L T 0~ A BT TR R T
FRE - STl RO L B H A 1 48 4 A A $0E
ST % 1 -

B2.  Health and safety
B2 fERAE%ZE

The office-based operation of the Company is not
considered to have significant occupational hazards. The
Company has complied with all the major relevant laws and
regulations such as Occupational Safety And Health
Ordinance.

LYY ENY YNV R O (N LI E N ) €S
i % o FAME ST BT A AR B R SO A & R fe
IR

B3.  Development and training

B3. BRI

Refer to “Social” section of this ESG Report.

AR AESG S (M8 | LT -

B4.  Labour standards
B4, HTIHEH

Child labour and forced labour are prohibited in the
Company.
AR R B AR T 3 TR % L

Operating practices

HEE

B5.  Supply Chain Management
Bs. fEMES

The office-based operation of the Company is not
considered to have a significant environmental and social
risks of the supply chain.

A% )RR R FCLASR AN 2 0 AR AL PR A R G E R
FCE R B0 S &l -

B6.  Product responsibility
B6. EMHEM

The office-based operation of the Company is not
considered to have significant environmental and social
risks of product responsibility due to its nature of business.
ANl R B R E B DAL A R S L E R
AL LS W R F B A T -

B7.  Anti-corruption

B7. KA

Refer to “Social” section of this ESG Report.

EERURAESG Hb By (41 & | IREZ T

Community

HE

B8, Community investment

BS. HE#KE

Refer to “Social” section of this ESG Report.

sEERURAESG Hsb By [4E & | R F
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Independent Auditor’s Report
T S A B

&4 g3t i AT R TR F)
HLM CPA LIMITED

Certified Public Accountants

Room 305, Arion Commercial Centre

2-12 Queen’s Road West, Hong Kong.
FH 2 e REG-125R B £ Fu305%
Tel & 3£:(852) 3103 6980

Fax 1% £ :(852) 3104 0170

E-mail & #: info@hlm.com hk

TO THE MEMBERS OF EAGLE RIDE INVESTMENT
HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Eagle
Ride Investment Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out
on pages 59 to 159, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting

policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2017 and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements” section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
“Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
T S A B AR

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO
GOING CONCERN

We draw attention to note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements, which indicates that the Group incurred a net loss
of approximately HK$45,249,000 and had net cash outflows
from operating activities of approximately HK$33,308,000
during the year ended 31 December 2017. These conditions
indicate the existence of a material uncertainty which may cast
significant doubt about the Group’s ability to continue as a

going concern.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
a going concern basis, the validity of which is dependent on
the Group’s ability to generate sufficient cash flows from
future operations and/or other sources to meet its liquidity
commitments. Further details are set out in note 2. The
consolidated financial statements do not include any
adjustments that would result should the Group be unable to

continue to operate as a going concern.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter described
in the “Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern” section,
we have determined the matters described below to be the

key audit matters to be communicated in our report.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

T S A% S e

Key Audit Matter
IBH 32 7 5t o OH

Valuation of financial assets designated as at FVTPL

HEIE R IL L S NE (E T A 18 75 & P B2

The Group’s financial assets designated as at fair
value through profit or loss were carried at
approximately HK$23,230,000 as at 31 December
2017. Management has assessed the fair value of
these unlisted investments with reference to the
valuation reports performed by an independent
professional valuer.

AREEK _F—-LET A= HIgE LA
FABE R AR 4 2 P & R 2 8 423,230,000
T % SE I LT BCE M B AE S B E 2
T 575 B M B A (R AT A AT 22 A (R R Al o

The valuation of these unlisted investments was
subject to significant judgment and estimation by
the management and has a significant financial
impact to the consolidated financial statements.
%55 JE T B A (B A BTG 1Y R A R A
A REGMBIRKREAE R ML E-
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
TS 7 A v e P B A T SR Y 5

Our procedures in relation to management’s valuation
assessment on financial assets designated as at fair
value through profit or loss included:

H 55U L R E S RS RE R AR AR B E
fibi(BLRTAil IRF A P2 7 0465

— Evaluated the objectivity, independence and

competency of the valuer;

A 1 R B

— Discussed with the valuer on the valuation
methodologies, assumptions and key estimates
used in the valuation for estimating the fair value;

— Bl (L AR s E A 58 2 F B (B (6 R BT BRI
B 75 25 ~ R0 B Y E AL

— Challenged the appropriateness and
reasonableness of the valuation methodology
assumption and key estimates use in the valuation
based on our knowledge of the relevant industry;

— MR E ST ER T M R AL R A (E
D7 B AR T BEAG w00 8 A A B

— Checked the mathematical accuracy of the

valuation; and

— A MGENFE e K&

— Assessed the reasonableness of the methods and
assumptions used by the management for
estimating the fair value.

— A A L AL A A o B (E B BR O B O ik AR
AR ) B o

We considered that the management’s judgment and
assumption used in the valuation of financial assets
designated as at fair value through profit or loss are
reasonable and appropriate.

B 55 AR PR 4R E By 1 SUE A R AR £ 2 RS
S A A (L P B T ) ) B AR R B 2 1Y
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Independent Auditor’s Report
T S A B AR

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included in
the annual report, but does not include the consolidated

financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form

of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to

report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and such internal control
as the directors determined is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative

but to do so.
The Audit Committee assists the directors of the Company in

discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s

financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
T S A B

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the
terms of our engagement, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any

other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial

statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

control;

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Group’s internal control,
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Independent Auditor’s Report
T S A B AR

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT

OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and

related disclosures made by the directors;

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause

the Group to cease to continue as a going concern;

e  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation; and

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group

audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify

during our audit.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
T S A B

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and

where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest

benefits of such communication.

HLM CPA LIMITED

Certified Public Accountants

Ho Pak Tat

Practising certificate number: P05215

Hong Kong, 29 March 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
A 1R A M At 2 T W A R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 E_F—LFE+_H="T—HILFE

2017 2016
2L R ARF
Notes HK$ HK$
Wi it 5t i
Revenue Wi 25 ©)) 718,333 350,000
Net realised loss on disposal of HEREAREERE Y
financial assets designated as WHEE 2 O
held for trading Y 15 T B - (6,618,694)
Net unrealised loss arising on HEERFFIEEEZ
revaluation of financial assets WP & 7 BT AR 2 R
designated as held for trading B e 18 T B (3,486,576)  (28,025,472)
Net unrealised gain (loss) arising on E A #§ %€ £ & /A B H 7
revaluation of financial assets A8 #i 2 BATS 7 BT
designated as at fair value Az KRB (E1E)
through profit or loss e 3,332,230 (5,457,4006)
(Loss) gain on disposal of a R R E A F (4R W 4R
subsidiary (10) (4,407,726) 2,225,567
Net other income, gains and losses /E\:ﬁﬁ A~ W3S M s R R (E (€©) 1,859,568 40,942
Administrative and other operating 17 B f FHAth 5 45 B 32
expenses (35,469,734) (33,812,400)

Loss from operations RE kR (1D (37,453,905)  (71,297,469)
Finance costs A5 2 (12) (7,794,716) (5,517,731
Loss before tax o o 1T e 48 (45,248,621)  (76,815,200)
Income tax expense 15 B B 52 (13) - -
Loss for the year and total A m A N EAG AR

comprehensive expenses
attributable to owners of the
Company

Y 48 B 22 T i S A8

(45,248,621)

(76,815,200)

Loss per share (3 s
Basic and diluted TR 7 (17) (0.027) (0.050)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Aok o A IR LA

At 31 December 2017 j* —F—L4FE+_H=1+—H

2017 2016
“E L ZEFARF
Notes HK$ HK$
/o= Wt SN
Non-current assets I ¥ B B e
Furniture, fixtures and equipment K4~ %& & & & (18 1,184,919 2,493,436
Financial assets at fair value e RAEEFT ARG 2
through profit or loss WS & (19 18,424,082 24,399,064
Rental deposit GENE 20) 2,372,498 2,372,498
21,981,499 29,264,998
Current assets B
Other receivables, deposits JH At B AT e B
and prepayments FEAT A 20) 3,156,846 1,264,443
Financial assets at fair value N R fEEFT AH R 2
through profit or loss W5 & e 19 5,271,920 3,952,496
Cash and bank balances B4 SR AT &G Bk 2D 30,907,119 27,009,870
39,335,885 32,226,809
Current liabilities B £ 1%
Creditors and accrued expenses JREASH kI K% T 2 2 22) 1,535,312 1,461,471
Unsecured borrowings HCHR I B (23) 22,866,153 23,412,771
24,401,465 24,874,242
Net current assets i B & A 14,934,420 7,352,567
Total assets less current & SR U B £ 0
liabilities 36,915,919 36,617,565
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Ao o A B IR A

At 31 December 2017 A —ZF—LHFE+_H=+—H

2017 2016
—E2—tHE —F—ARF
Notes HK$ HK$
Wit i # T VST
Non-current liabilities I B A
Unsecured borrowings HEHE A = 23) 4,894,148 5,757,566
Corporate bonds s FE S 49 31,447,683 30,481,054
36,341,831 36,238,620
NET ASSETS & E A 574,088 378,945
Capital and reserves B A B fiki
Share capital il (25) 22,544,485 20,225,735
Reserves fit thi (21,970,397)  (19,846,790)
TOTAL EQUITY HE £5 48 %0 574,088 378,945

The consolidated financial statements on pages 59 to 159 were

approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors
on 29 March 2018 and are signed on its behalf by:

TUNG Shu Sun
ERiF)

Director
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e
Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # % —ZF—LHF+ - H=+—H I &

Capital
Share Share redemption Accumulated

capital premium reserves losses Total

Jie A e (60 A O Ik At # At

HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$

BT BT BT BT BT

At 1 January 2016 RoFE—NFE—H—H 18,750,735 601,966,480 168,800  (572,726,388) 48,159,627
Total comprehensive expenses 2T B LA - - - (76,815,200)  (76,815,200)
Placing of shares i 6 FRE A 1,475,000 27,559,518 = = 29,034,518

At 31 December 2016 and RoF—=ANFE+_H=1—H

1 January 2017 KI=F—LHF—-H—H 20,225,735 629,525,998 168,800 (649,541,588) 378,945
Total comprehensive expenses 2T A5 - - - (45,248,021)  (45,248,621)
Placing of shares i & R Ay 2,318,750 43,125,014 = = 45,443,764
At 31 December 2017 REZB-LEFZA=1T—H 22,544,485 672,651,012 168,800  (694,790,209) 574,088
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HEBEmMER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # % —F—LHF T+ H =1+—HILF &

2017 2016
“E L E AR
Notes HK$ HK$
Wit 7 # T T
Operating activities BB
Loss before tax BB il e 18 (45,248,621)  (76,815,200)
Adjustments for: RELUT & JH R %
Depreciation of furniture, fixtures AR {fh - % B K s M 7 85
and equipment (18) 1,308,517 1,308,517
Net realised loss on disposal of e EATHEEEZ M
financial assets designated as HEEZCEBEE
held for trading TR - 6,618,694
Net unrealised loss arising on HAGTEE M FHE R E 2
revaluation of financial assets VWEENEAZ REH
designated as held for trading i 48 A 3,486,576 28,025,472
Net unrealised (gain) loss arising  H A ¥8 & £ ¥ A A (E R
on revaluation of financial A8 5 2 WHHS i T
assets designated as at fair Az REBL ()
value through profit or loss &5 18 VR A (3,332,230) 5,457,406
Bond interest income BHFBIRA ® (718,333) (350,000)
Loss (gain) on disposal of a th B B JBS 2 ) s 18
subsidiary (i) 1o 4,407,726 (2,225,567)
Net exchange (gain) loss e 56, (Wi ) e 48 7 4R (1,406,514) 198,574
Interest income FE A ® 81 -
Interest expenses FJE B 2 (12) 7,794,716 5,517,731
Operating cash outflows before S A B A
movements in working capital i (33,708,244) (32,264,373)
Increase in rental deposit LB < 1y m - (2,372,498)
Decrease in other receivables, oA R R~ e K
deposits and prepayments FA AT I B D 326,011 1,503,331
Increase (Decrease) in creditors and MEAS 2K TH K T8 2 2 F 38 in
accrued expenses (W) 73,841 (5,066,929)
Cash used in operating activities 2 15 Bj B 8y il 3 & (33,308,392) (38,200,469)
Interest received 2 R S 81 —
Net cash used in operating REE 16 B B B B
activities (33,308,311)  (38,200,469)
Annual Report 2017 4£3 63



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mallaigR
For the year ended 31 December 2017 # % —ZF—LHF+ - H=+—H I &
2017 2016
L
Notes HK$ HK$
Wit it T oI
Investing activities BEGEE
Bond interest received E i fE 25 LR 700,000 =
Proceeds from disposal of a H B B 2 A I 15 KE
subsidiary 1,500,000 19,000,000
Purchase of financial assets BEIEEAREEE 2 0
designated as held for trading HEE - (765,788)
Proceeds from disposal of financial 848 & & ¢ 1FH & 2 Bt
asset designated as held for W5 & i 19 3K IH
trading - 825,926
Purchase of financial assets W B 48 2 Sy ¥R BB R
designated as at fair value A 4 2 BABS B
through profit or loss (2,200,000) (5,000,000)
Net cash generated from 1 & I By P e AR B i
investing activities - 14,060,138
Financing activities il ¥ 3 B
Corporate bonds interest paid N EfE SR 2 FB S AT (24) (2,050,000) (1,350,000)
Loans interest paid B B S A (3,356,987) (998,436)
Net proceeds from issue of AT AR S 2 TG 30OE
corporate bonds eI - 8,950,000
Net proceeds from issue of shares — #4T A 2 B 15 2K TE 15 B 45,443,764 29,034,518
Net proceeds from unsecured loans & {i & iy 15 3K IH 48,948,864 19,431,200
Repayment of unsecured loans 1 7 S0 G 1 (51,780,000) (4,002,463)
Net cash generated from il B 3 B P AR B4 i
financing activities 37,205,641 51,064,819
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

22 /N 2 B
mAEBlEnER
For the year ended 31 December 2017 # % —F—LHF T+ H =1+—HILF &
2017 2016
SB—bFE  —BAK
Notes HK$ HK$
Wit it # T ESH
Net increase in cash and cash B4 & B4 % EH Y ¥
equivalents T3 3,897,330 26,924,488
Cash and cash equivalents at the ¥ ZH & KB &EEHY
beginning of year 27,070,008 145,520
Cash and cash equivalents at the £ RZHE KRB &EEHY
end of year 30,967,338 27,070,008
Cash and cash equivalents BRekB&EEHDE:
represent:
Cash and bank balances Bl K ERAT & R 2D 30,907,119 27,009,870
Other receivables L Ath B Wi K
— brokers’ accounts — EHEF O 20) 60,219 60,138
30,967,338 27,070,008
Major non-cash transaction FRIEBERS

During the year, the Group has early redeemed an unlisted

corporate bond amounting to HK$2,200,000. The amount was

not yet settled and included in other receivables as at 31

December 2017.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao 1 B A P R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # % — % —

1.

66

tEFA=ZST—HIEFE
GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands with
limited liability and its shares are listed on the main
board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) and its ultimate holding company is
APAC Investment Holdings Limited (“APAC”)
(incorporated in Samoa). Its ultimate controlling party is
Mr. Hu Haisong (“The Ultimate Controlling Party”),
who is a non-executive director of the Company. The
registered office of the Company is at Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands and its principal place of business in
Hong Kong is Room 22006, China Resources Building, 26
Harbour Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong.

The Group is principally engaged in investment holdings
and trading of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVTPL”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the same as the
functional currency of the Company. It is authorised for
issue on 29 March 2018.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

In preparing the consolidated financial statements on a
going concern basis, the directors of the Company have
given careful consideration to the future liquidity of the

Group notwithstanding that:

— The Group incurred a net loss of approximately
HK$45,249,000, and net cash outflows from
operating activities of approximately HK$33,308,000
for the year ended 31 December 2017;

— The Group recorded net current assets of
approximately HK$14,934,000 and net assets of
approximately HK$574,000, which included the
unsecured borrowings of approximately
HK$22 866,000 which will be due for repayment
within the next twelve months after the end of the

reporting period;

— ALMEEZ

— & B

Ay m) J — T B 2 R A AL 2
AR A H By 1E B W B S 38 5 B
AR (TBR ) EAr B i
B A F HREEREEIRA R
A (THERE]) (ﬁi\%@aﬁﬂﬁ%‘iﬂﬁﬁij °
Hol A HE 07 By B AN etk ([ IR A 4%
W) o B ALN R Z FEHLA Ei%g ES
2 Al 2 GE M M 3 R 2 R Cricket
Square > Hutchins Drive * P.O. Box
2681 > Grand Cayman KY1-1111 >
Cayman Tslands > Ifif H 75 ¥ 32 2278 3£
JBh 0 A AT U Y A 2058 2 I K 22
1#2206% -

AEMTERBEREERLETEL
REEF ABESD ([& R EMA AR
a2 B E

R B R DL T ([t ) 280
Eﬁizl-‘/z}_JZIjJ REE AR - ¥R K E

W_F—NFE=ZH ZHJUHER T
%x"
A5 3

TE 1% 135 AR K 2R Ve I 5% S5 A B S
WERE AAF M EFGH AL
RGBT T #HS 8 E

—tHF+=A
gﬂ“*Ethﬁri% T s 185 4
45,249,000%5 7T > H #8536 8 2 Bl
4 3t 4933,308,000% 7T 5

— FAEHEBEBTRBEEFHED

14,934,000 70 & & 7 5 {H £
574,000%5 JG > & AL $5 A% 5
WK+ A A2 R 2
S 15 45 4922,866,000% 7T 5
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao o1 B 5 A P

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # % —F—LHF T+ H =1+—HILF &

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

The Group recorded unsecured borrowings and
corporate bonds of approximately HK$59,208,000 in
aggregate while the total assets was approximately
HK$61,317,000, leading to the debts to total assets
ratio of 96.56% as at 31 December 2017.

Despite the above, the directors of the Company are of

the opinion that the Group will have sufficient financial

resources to meet its financial obligations as they fall due

for at least the next twelve months from the end of the

reporting date of this report,

after taking into

consideration of the following:

®

(i)

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the
Group entered into a legally binding share placing
agreement with placing agents for the issue and
allotment of a maximum of 1,000,000,000 shares at
the placing price of HK$0.3 per share on a best
effort basis. Reference is made to the announcement
of the Company dated 28 March 2018 in relation to
the placing of new shares of the Company under

special mandate;

In January 2018, the Company signed an extension
agreement with the licensed money lending
company for an unsecured loan of HK$10,000,000
to extend the repayment due date from January
2018 to January 2019, bearing interest rate of 10%
per annum, subject to the condition that the Group
will pay the entire amount of interest for the whole
extension period in the sum of HK$1,000,000 in
advance on 28 February 2018, and the said
HK$1,000,000 has been paid on that date;

Annual Report 2017 4E#
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Tard
o

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # % —ZF—LHF+ - H=+—H I &

2.

68

o B 5 R M ik

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(ii) In January 2018, the Company signed an extension
agreement with a corporate bondholder to extend
the maturity date of a corporate bond with principal
amount of HK$10,000,000 from January 2018 to
January 2020 and the interest rate will be revised
from 5% per annum to 6% per annum effective from
29 January 2018; and

(iv) The Ultimate Controlling Party has confirmed in

writing that despite the term for the loans due to

him is within twelve months, he will not demand
repayment of the loans until the Group is financially
viable to make the repayment and he will provide
continuous financial support to the Group to meet

its financial obligations.

The directors of the Company have carried out a detailed
review of the cash flow forecast of the Group for the
next twelve months from the reporting date taking into
account the impact of the above measures, the directors
believe that the Group will have sufficient cash resources
to satisfy its future working capital and other financing
requirements. Accordingly, the consolidated financial

statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

Should the Group be unable to continue to operate as a
going concern, adjustments would have to be made to
write down the value of assets to their recoverable
amounts, to provide for any future liabilities which might
arise and to reclassify non-current assets and liabilities as
current assets and liabilities respectively. The effect of
these adjustments has not been reflected in the

consolidated financial statements.

2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao o1 B 5 A P

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # % —F—LHF T+ H =1+—HILF &

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

The Group has applied for the first time in the current
year the following amendments to HKFRSs issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”):

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses

Amendments to HKFRS 12 As part of the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs

2014-2016 Cycle

Except as described below, the application of the above
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial

statements.
Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The Group has applied these amendments for the first
time in the current year. The amendments require an
entity to provide disclosures that enable users of financial
statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. In addition, the amendments also require
disclosures on changes in financial assets if cash flows
from those financial assets were, or future cash flows will

be, included in cash flows from financing activities.

Specifically, the amendments require the following to be
disclosed: (i) changes from financing cash flows; (ii)
changes arising from obtaining or losing control of
subsidiaries or other businesses; (iii) the effect of changes
in foreign exchange rates; (iv) changes in fair values; and

(v) other changes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao 1 B A P R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # % —ZF—LHF+ - H=+—H I &

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs issued but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and

amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are

not yet effective:
HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16
HKEFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 40

HK (IFRIC)-Int 22

HK (IFRIC)-Int 23

Amendments to HKFRSs

70

Financial Instruments®

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments'

Leases’

Insurance Contracts?

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions'

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts?

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation?
Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture!

Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures®

As part of the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle!

Transfers of Investment Property!

Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration®

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments?

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle?
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao o1 B 5 A P

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # % —F—LHF T+ H =1+—HILF &

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. WP RT B SRS T A i B 5 i
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING o L ([ 3 W0 sy e I )
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued) (#4)

New and amendments to HKFRSs issued but not yet O A8 5 1E v R 2 2 2 W T AT WA

effective (Continued) ;%Eﬁ%ﬁifbﬁﬁll (#)

i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, W= F— N — H — H Bz 4% B b6 1 47
with earlier application permitted. FEHI AR Fu i FRE A o

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, 2 W E—JUE— A — H 32 4% B 46 19 4F
with earlier application permitted. FEHI AR Fu i FRE A o

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021, ? ATHR T 4 — H B AR B R R AR
with earlier application permitted. FEHI AR Fu i FRE A o

4 Effective date to be determined. 4 AR H B R o

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments Tr I R R E ok [ T A

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the 7 VR P B i 4 B I SR 0 R 5 A A BH A BS

classification and measurement of financial assets, B M EESBREIE - —BE

financial liabilities, general hedge accounting and TR K R W BT

impairment requirements for financial assets. JE ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao 1 B A P R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # % —ZF—LHF+ - H=+—H I &

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continuead)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to the

Group are:

e All recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of HKFRS 9 are required to be subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically,
debt investments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. Debt instruments that are held within a
business model whose objective is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets, and that have contractual terms of
the financial asset giving rise to cash flows on
specified dates that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding,
are measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income. All other debt investments
and equity investments are measured at fair value at
each of subsequent accounting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair
value of an equity investment (that is not held for
trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or

loss.

3.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

* In relation to the impairment of financial assets,
HKFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model, as
opposed to an incurred credit loss model under
HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement”. The expected credit loss model

requires an entity to account for expected credit

losses and changes in those expected credit losses
at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit
risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is no
longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred

before credit losses are recognised.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
adoption of HKFRS 9 in the future may have certain
impact on the amounts reported in respect of the Group’s
financial assets and financial liabilities. It is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of that effect

until a detailed review has been completed.
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a single comprehensive model for
entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the
current revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18
“Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts” and the

related interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, the standard introduces a 5-step approach to

revenue recognition:
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

e Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

e Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in
the contract

o Step 3:  Determine the transaction price

e Step4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

e Step5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the

entity satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or
as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
‘control’ of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer. Far
more prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS 15
to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive

disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued clarifications to HKFRS 15 in
relation to the identification of performance obligations,
principal versus agent considerations, as well as licensing

application guidance.

The directors of the Company anticipates that the
application of HKFRS 15 in the future may result in more
disclosures. However, the directors of the Company do
not anticipate that the application of HKFRS 15 will have
a material impact on the timing and amounts of revenue

recognised in the respective reporting periods.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will
supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations

when it becomes effective.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continueq)

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on
the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by a
customer. Distinctions of operating leases and finance
leases are removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced
by a model where a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability have to be recognised for all
leases by lessees, except for short-term leases and leases
of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain
exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of the
lease liability. The lease liability is initially measured at
the present value of the lease payments that are not paid
at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted
for interest and lease payments, as well as the impact of
lease modifications, amongst others.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in
HKAS 17, and continues to require a lessor to classify a
lease either as an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 16.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 16 in the future may have impact
on the amounts reported and disclosures made in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements. However, it is
not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the
effect of HKFRS 16 until the Group performs a detailed

review.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the other new and amendments to HKFRSs
will have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong

Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of
each reporting period, as explained in the accounting

policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the

consideration given in exchange for assets.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would takes
those characteristics into account when pricing the asset
or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purpose in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that
are within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value,
such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use in
HKAS 36.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Statement of compliance (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which

are described as follows:

* Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that

the entity can access at the measurement date;
e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices

included within Level 1, that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and
*  Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.
The principal accounting policies are set out below.
Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control
is achieved where the Company:

e  has power over the investee;

e is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

*  has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control

listed above.

—  Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date of the Group gains control until the date when

the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

—  Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the Company and to the noncontrolling interests.
Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests even if this results in the

non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting

policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on

consolidation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by
which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the
fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of

the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of
the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of
the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or
loss or transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value
of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the
date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS
39, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an

investment in an associate or a joint venture.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is recognised when the
amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when it is
probable that future economic benefits will flow to the
Group and when specific criteria have been met for each

of the Group’s activities, as described below:

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the shareholder’s right to receive payment has been
established (provided that it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount

of revenue can be measured reliably).

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash inflows through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net

carrying amount on initial recognition.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified

as operating leases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease terms, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the
time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased
asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under
operating leases are recognised as an expense in the

period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised
as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis,
except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic

benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are interests and other costs (e.g.
transaction costs) that an entity incurs in connection with

the borrowing of funds.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those asset until such time as the assets are

substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs

eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss

in the period in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not

retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise except

for:

e exchange differences on foreign currency
borrowings relating to assets under construction for
future productive use, which are included in the
cost of those assets when they are regarded as an
adjustment to interest costs on those foreign

currency borrowings;

*  exchange differences on transactions entered into in

order to hedge certain foreign currency risks; and

e exchange differences on monetary items receivable
from or payable to a foreign operation for which
settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur
(therefore forming part of the net investment in the
foreign operation), which are recognised initially in
other comprehensive income and reclassified from
equity to profit or loss on repayment of the

monetary items.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
foreign operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e., Hong Kong dollars) using
exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Income and expense items are translated at the
average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which
case the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if
any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of foreign
currency translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling

interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of
the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an
interest in a joint arrangement or an associate that
includes a foreign operation of which the retained
interest becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company are

reclassified to profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all the employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with

the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense
unless another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion

of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries, annual leave and

sick leave) after deducting any amount already paid.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax

currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income because of items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by

the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the

initial recognition of goodwill.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax (Continueqd)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint
arrangements, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse

in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to

be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount

of its assets and liabilities.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax
arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting

for the business combination.

Furniture, fixtures and equipment

Furniture, fixtures and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost, less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent

accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets less their residual values over their estimated useful

lives, using the straight-line method, at the following

rates:

Leasehold improvements 20%
Furniture and fixtures 20%
Office equipment 20%

The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in

estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Furniture, fixtures and equipment (Continued)

An item of furniture, fixtures and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of
the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of furniture, fixtures and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is

recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and
intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for
impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an

indication that the asset may be impaired.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates

of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or the cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or

loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately

in profit or loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Group will be required to
settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made

of the amount of the obligation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Provisions (Continued)

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into
account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows

(when the effect of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to
settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a
third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is
virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and

the amount of receivable can be measured reliably.

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual

provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are

recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following specified
categories: financial assets at FVTPL, loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the
time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation

or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying

amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments other than those financial assets
classified as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial asset is held for trading or it is designated as at
FVTPL.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of

selling it in the near term; or

* on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of

short-term profit-taking; or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and effective

as a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for
trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial

recognition if:

e such designation eliminates or significantly reduces
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that

would otherwise arise; or

e the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is
managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair
value basis, in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is

provided internally on that basis; or

o it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the
entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any
gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in
profit or loss. The net loss recognised in profit or loss
excludes any dividend or interest earned on the financial
asset and is included in the “net realised loss on disposal
of financial assets designated as held for trading”. Fair

value is determined in the manner described in Note 7.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including other receivables,
deposits, and cash and bank balances) are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any impairment (see accounting policy on impairment
loss on financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables when the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting
period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired
when there is objective evidence that, as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of
the investment have been affected.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of tinancial assets (Continued)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

0 breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments; or

0 it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

. the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as accounts
receivable, assets are assessed for impairment on a
collective basis even if they were assessed not to be
impaired individually. Objective evidence of impairment
for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s
past experience of collecting payments, as well as
observable changes in national or local economic

conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the

financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent

periods (see the accounting policy below).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of tinancial assets (Continuea)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of accounts receivable, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. When an accounts receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited against the allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account

are recognised in profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the investment at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would

have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
according with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability

and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Group are recognised at the proceeds received, net of

direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale

or cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the

financial liability is either held for trading or it is
designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
repurchasing it in the near term; or

. on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

* itis a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for
trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

*  such designation eliminates or significantly reduces
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise; or

e the financial liability forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which
is managed and its performance is evaluated on a
fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

S it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement permits
the entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Other tinancial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including creditors, unsecured
borrowings and corporate bonds) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or where appropriate, a shorter period, to the

net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis other than financial liabilities classified as at FVTPL,
of which the interest expense is included in net gains or

losses.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognises an associated
liability. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds

received.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is

recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its
entirety, the Group allocates the previous carrying
amount of the financial asset between the part it
continues to recognise, and the part it no longer
recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those
parts on the date of the transfer. The difference between
the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no
longer recognised and the sum of the consideration
received for the part no longer recognised and any
cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised
in profit or loss. A cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated
between the part that continues to be recognised and the
part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the

relative fair values of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in

profit or loss.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker. The chief reporting decision-
maker is the person or group that responsible for
allocating resources and accessing performance of the
operating segments and geographical location. The
Group has determined the Company’s board of directors

(the “Board”) as its chief operating decision maker.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Segment reporting (Continued)

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of production processes, the type of class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products or
provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a

majority of these criteria.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash at banks and on
hand and demand deposits with any bank or other
financial institution. Cash equivalents are short-term,
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within

three months of maturing at acquisition.
Related parties
A related party is a person or entity that is related to the

Group that is preparing its financial statement.

(i) A person or a close member of that person’s family

is related to the Group if that person:

(1) has control or joint control of the Group;

(2) has significant influence over the Group; or

(3) is a member of the key management personnel

of the Group or a parent of the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies:

(D

@)

©))

€9

©))

©)

@)

®

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the

other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same

third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third party
and the other entity is an associate of the same

third party.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group. If the
Group is itself such a plan, the sponsoring

employers are also related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly-controlled by

a person identified in (1.

A person identified in (i)(1) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of

a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the

parent of the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources,
services or obligations between a reporting entity and a

related party, regardless of whether a price is charged.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the

entity, and include:

(a) that person’s children and spouse or domestic

partner;

(b) children of that person’s spouse or domestic

partner; and

(¢) dependants of that person or that person’s spouse

or domestic partner.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 4, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from

these estimates.

The estimates and associated assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision

affects both current and future periods.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial

year.

Depreciation

The Group depreciates the furniture, fixtures and
equipment over their estimated useful live and after
taking into account of their estimated residual values,
using the straight line method. The estimated useful live
reflects the directors’ estimate of the periods that the
Group intends to derive future economic benefits from
the use of the Group’s furniture, fixtures and equipment.
The residual values reflect the directors’ estimated
amount that the Group would currently obtain from the
disposal of the assets, after deducting the estimated costs
of disposal, if the assets were already of the age and in

the condition expected at the end of their useful lives.

Fair value measurement and valuation processes

The listed and unlisted equity and other related financial
assets investments are measured at fair value for financial
reporting purposes. The Board has set up Investment
Committee, which the executive director is appointed as
the Chairman, and Fortune Legendary Asset Management
Limited (Formerly known as “Blue Star Asset Management
Limited”) (“Fortune Legendary”) is appointed as
investment manager to review and monitor the fair value
changes of the investments. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Group uses market-observable

data to the extent it is available.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Fair value measurement and valuation processes
(Continued)

Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group
engaged an independent professional valuer to perform
the valuation. The Investment Committee and the
investment manager work closely with the valuer to
establish the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs
to the model. The Investment Committee and the
investment manager report the valuation finding to the
Board to explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair

value of the assets and liabilities.

The Group uses valuation techniques that include inputs
that are not based on observable market data to estimate
the fair value of certain types of financial instruments.
Note 7 provides detailed information about the valuation
techniques, inputs and key assumptions used in the
determination of the fair value of financial instruments, as
well as the detailed sensitivity analysis for these

assumptions.

The directors of the Company believe that the chosen
valuation techniques and assumptions used are
appropriate in determining the fair value of financial

instruments.

Income tax

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had estimated
unused tax losses of approximately HK$212,638,000
(2016: approximately HK$174,679,000) available for offset
against future profits. No deferred tax assets have been
recognised on such tax losses due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams. The realisability of the deferred
tax asset mainly depends on whether sufficient future
taxable profits or taxable temporary differences will be
available in the future. In cases where the actual future
taxable profits generated are more than expected,
recognition of deferred tax assets may arise, which would
be recognised in profit or loss for the period in which

such recognition takes place.
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104

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remained unchanged from prior year.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. As part of this review, the directors of the
Company consider the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance
its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as well
as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing
debt. No changes were made in the objectives, policies

or processes as compared to that in 2016.

The directors of the Company monitor the capital on the
basis of gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as total

borrowings divided by total assets.

The management considers the gearing ratio at the year

ended was as follows:

B A o

A AR A8 B HE A o DA OR A 4 [
T E A RE D R A I W)
i AL A B S BB -l - B R
W [m] o AR S I RSB SR MG B DL AR
JBE EU MR 5 A B

AAFERHENBE EAREM MR
ARt 2 — 50> AR FEFEE
B R BAS B A TR B AR 2 AR B JE B - AR
%%%ZE%>$%@}{%L%@?}EHE§
B~ B AT~ T (] By % B AT %‘)ﬂfji
S ] BRSPS AN S o B
FoNFERE B BUR SR 4

ARFEERKBEEEAMRERERSE

7 o I B SR T 1 A8 B R DA AR
o

T L 0 A 5 2 R R
i :

2017 2016
—F L T — N4
HK$ HK$
T T

Total borrowings: HIEE
Corporate bonds NEIE=E S 31,447,683 30,481,054
Unsecured borrowings AR (S B 27,760,301 29,170,337
59,207,984 59,651,391
Total assets HE 61,317,384 61,491,807
Gearing ratio GEAMBILE 96.56% 97.01%
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7

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Categories of financial instruments

The table below provided a reconciliation of the line

St 25 Ja, I o
Sl T H 2 B

TR AR S B IR UL R TH H B 5

items in the consolidated statement of financial position T REBU Z B -
to the categories of financial instruments.
2017 2016
—ER L TN
HK$ HK$
Financial assets B
Financial assets designated HBERFHEREEREZ
as held for trading AR & 465,920 3,952,496
Financial assets designated 16 0E By ¥k s B EFEA
as at FVTPL Bz B EE 23,230,082 24,399,064
Loans and receivables (including & 3% & FE ISR (6045 B 4 K Bl
cash and cash equivalents) BEEY) 36,037,139 29,916,676
59,733,141 58,268,230
Financial liabilities W R
Creditors JE A IE 100,000 100,000
Loans from a director w2 11,873,360 11,237,917
Loan from a licensed money 5 B AR 2> F) B K
lending company 9,985,680 10,472,569
Loans from third parties 5 = &K 5,901,261 7,459,851
Corporate bonds NEIEEE 31,447,683 30,481,054
59,307,984 59,751,391
The directors of the Company consider that the carrying KNG EERDL NS MBEREF

amounts of the financial assets and financial liabilities
recognised in the consolidated financial statements

approximate their fair values.
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106

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include equity
investments, deposits, cash and bank balances, creditors,
corporate bonds and loans from a director. Details of
these financial instruments are disclosed in the respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (foreign currency risk,
interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk, liquidity
risk and operational risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective

manner.

(1) Risk management
(a) Market risk
(i) Foreign currency risk
The Group has foreign currency
investments in financial assets, which
expose the Group to foreign currency
risk. Approximately 31% (2016:
approximately 34%) of the Group’s
financial assets denominated in currencies
other than the functional currency of the
Company. The management monitors
foreign exchange exposure by closely
monitoring the movement of foreign

currency rate.

The Group currently does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the management monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign

currency exposure should the need arise.

e

S0 5 L B 4 B ()

T % L B 4 R H W R BOR

A H 2 TSR T B A BT A
¥ s~ Bl ROARATAS 8% EAT 3E - A
FAEHAAERE 2GR -ZEEM T E
N N N A
il T B A B 2 R B S T R B (b
e L B~ R 2R L g S L At £ A L g )

15 B0 Ja By ~ I B 4 gy % T o
AR anfe] A L & JEL B 2 BOR EOR T
3C o A5 T I A R I B 4% e 4 TR\ B > DA Tl
PR3 IRF A A5 B i

1) Rk
(a) 1% bE
O/ 50
A4 B A B A
Wl SAREEHKZ
A s L B o A 4R &)
31% ( = F— N4 4
34% ) 2 BABS & B A A
AT RE RIS B
e M o 4 LB 9 1) M
FA T A W i, 5 )y B
W 58 R B o

AL J A SN
@ﬂ%%%@ﬁﬂﬁ
B S A1 5 e L e % R
b ESRUG PN TR )
BT EEL -
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7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(1) Risk management (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

The significant carrying amounts of the

tHEF+_A=Zt—HIEFE

7. BAE R B E

IE(%’)
(1) JEBEEB (4
@) ﬁ?fﬁﬂlfb: (#)
G SMEE R (4)
A R B R > A< 4E [ DA

Group’s foreign currencies denominated S EHEZ B EE 2
monetary assets at the end of reporting HARMRMAEL T
period are as follows:
2017 2016
B S w8 —EF N
HK$ HK$
# U T
Singapore dollars N3 oo
“S$ (THm3gre]) 18,424,082 14,028,043
United States dollars EH
(“US$”) ([%&5El) - 5,869,751
Sensitivity analysis SRk o AT
The Group is mainly exposed to the ARSE T 5 R T
effects of fluctuation of the S$ and US$. YESTEALT 2 X
As the HK$ is pegged to the US$, the S 6 G B 5% Tr 4 4
Group considers the risk of movements AR SR W 58 7 Y UL SR T
2 A 438 ) Jl e L 1 o

in exchange rates between the HK$ and
the US$ to be insignificant. Accordingly,
the fluctuation is excluded from the
sensitivity analysis. If the exchange rate
of HK$ against S$ has been weakened or
strengthened by 5% (2016: 5%), the
Group’s loss for the year would have
been higher or lower by HK$921,204
(2016: HK$701,402).
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7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

108

(1) Risk management (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)
(ii) Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value
interest rate risk in relation to fixed
coupon rate corporate bonds and fixed
rate loans from a director, a licensed
money lending company and
independent third parties (2016: fixed
coupon rate corporate bonds and fixed
rate loans from a director, a licensed
money lending company and
independent third parties). The Group is
also exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk relating to the Group’s variable-rate
bank balances (2016: variable-rate bank
balances).

The Group’s interest rate risk related
primarily to the variable interest bearing
deposits and debts.

The Group currently does not have an
interest rate hedging policy. However, the
management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider the necessary
actions when significant interest rate
exposure is anticipated.

Sensitivity analysis

The Group’s sensitivity to interest rate
risk has been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates for bank
balances at the end of the reporting
period, which is not significant influence
to the Group’s loss before tax. A 100
basis point change is used which
represents management’s assessment of
the possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates have been 100 (2016: 100)
basis points higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the Group’s
loss before tax for the year ended 31
December 2017 would be increased/
decreased by HK$282,718 (2016:
increased/decreased by HK$326,000).

7. SRR B )
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7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(1) Risk management (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)
(iii) Other price risk

7. AR B B )
1) EBEE ()
@) WS FE (4)
Gii) A 1E #s Ja

The Group’s strategy for the management
of market risk is driven by the Group’s
investment objective. The listed and
unlisted equity and other related financial
assets investments in Hong Kong and
overseas are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period. Therefore,
the Group’s equity investments are
exposed to other price risk. The Group’s
market risk is managed on a regular basis
by the investment manager in accordance
with policies and procedures in place and
are monitored on a regular basis by the
Board. Decisions to buy or sell trading
securities are based on regular monitoring
of the performance of securities
compared to that of the relevant stock
market index and other industry
indicators, as well as the Group’s liquidity
needs. To manage its price risk arising
from the equity investments, the Group
maintains a portfolio of diversified
investments in terms of industry
distribution such as education and
minerals industry sectors. Temporarily,
the Group’s management has monitored
price risk and will consider hedging of

the risk if necessary.
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7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

110

(1) Risk management (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)
(i) Other price risk (Continued)

The management manages the exposure
of financial assets designated as at FVTPL
by maintaining a portfolio of investments
with different risk and return profiles. The
Group’s equity price risk is mainly
concentrated on equity instruments
operating in securities and brokerage
industry sectors quoted in the Stock
Exchange.

The Group has not hedged its price risk
arising from investments in equity
securities. The Group’s securities
investments are listed on the Stock
Exchange are valued at the quoted
market prices at the reporting date.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been
determined based on the exposure to
equity price risks at the end of reporting
period. For sensitively analysis purpose,
the sensitivity rate remains at 15% in the
current year.

If listed equity prices had been 15%
higher/lower for financial assets
designated as held for trading (2016: 15%
higher/lower), loss for the year ended 31
December 2017 would be decreased/
increased by HK$69,888 (2016:
decreased/increased by HK$592,874). If
the unlisted equity prices had been
higher/lower by 15% for financial assets
designated as at FVTPL (2016: 15%
higher/lower) and all other variables
were held constant, loss for the year
ended 31 December 2017 would be
decreased/increased by HK$2,763,612
(2016: decreased/increased by
HK$2,984,669).

7. B4R B
1 JEkE

BHH ()
S (4

@) W5 B (%)
(i) HALEHE JE Fg (48 )

PRI DA MESE AN [ 3 B
OVE A E S ¥ RER=#L
18 5E Mk REEFA
18 1 2 W B E 1Y
Bax o A 4 1 14 e A B (E
JR\ B == S T 4 v 2
L 88 5047 SR A WO LA
ik 7 T W S8 BT 2 ¥R

AEEBHHE W HTE
T B w8 55 P 5 | 2 A
A% JEL gt o A 4 1) 1Y 3
BT W A2 Py b i %
5 HA AR ol B B
b 1E

BB 43 AT
DA SRR R 43 BT 22 R
5 W AR K 32 AR B A% JEL
Wi 78 A o Wl ML JER B 4y AT
M5 A 4F B Rk R
PREFEL15% °

W4s E B ERE 2 W
WEEZ B RAESE
EF T B15% (&
— N4 BT B
15%) » R E —F—+t
F+A=+—HIL4E
JE 2 18w, 1
69,888% oL ( =& — N
AW 1 592,874
WIt) o M8 E BN
RAEHEFT AR 2 BB
B 2 I b A A
BT BR15% (&
— N EF T B
15% ) > 1 BT A H A 4
AR A B E
F—LtHFE+H=+—
H 1E4F B 2 5 18 8%
b 1EAN2,763,6128 7T
—NAE i
12,984,669 70) °

EAGLE RIDE INVESTMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED J& J; % 2 IR A5 FR A 7]



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao o1 B 5 A P

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # % —F—LHF T+ H =1+—HILF &

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(1) Risk management (Continued)
(b) Credit risk

(©)

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will
be unable or unwilling to meet a commitment
that it has entered into with the Group.
Financial assets which potentially subject the
Group to concentrations of credit risk consist
principally of financial assets at FVTPL, bank

balances and deposits.

The Group limits its exposure to credit risk by
transacting the majority of its financial assets
and contractual commitment activities with
brokers, banks and regulated exchanges with
high credit ratings and that the Group
considers to be well established. All
transactions in listed financial assets are
settled/paid for upon delivery using approved
and reputable brokers. Accordingly, the Group

has no significant concentration of credit risk.

Liquidity risk

The Group invests in both listed and unlisted
equity securities and corporate bond which are
classified as financial assets at FVTPL. The
listed equity investment is considered readily
realisable as it is listed in the Stock Exchange.
The unlisted equity securities and corporate
bond may not be traded in an organised public
market and may be illiquid. As a result, the
Group may not be able to liquidate quickly its
investments in these instruments at an amount
close to their fair value in order to meet its
liquidity requirements or to respond to specific
events such as deterioration in the
creditworthiness of any particular issuer.
Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and cash
equivalents in order to fulfil the Group’s

financial liabilities.
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7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(1) Risk management (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following tables detail the Group’s

remaining contractual maturity for its financial

liabilities which are included in the maturity

analysis provided internally to the key

management personnel for the purpose of

managing liquidity risk. For non-derivative

7. S4B Ak

BHH ()

1) RBEEBL (4)

(© W& (41

DU SRR T A 48 [ BE RS &1
BEHREGER B A &
HdR R4S N E B R Y
F B H 3 47 DAE 5 5 B B
PERBE o 1A FEAT AR PR 2 1K

R T R B TR G B B 4

financial liabilities, the table reflects the B I B R B AN 4E
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities B 2R A F- B9 92 3R ) E
based on the earliest date on which the Group b o M 3R AL 4 FLE A0 A 5 Bl
can be required to pay. The tables include B e
both interest and principal cash flow.
2017
"Rtk
Weighted Total Total
average On Within Over undiscounted  carrying
interest rate demand lyear  2-5years Syears  cashflows  amounts
AMB
it 4 HEATE
FHH % [ 2E —ER - CERE O ERLE BE REARE
% HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
% Lo #7 7 Lo ¥ 7
Creditors B 538 - 100,000 - - - 100,000 100,000
Loans from a director % 52 B 6 - 11,873,360 - - 11,873,360 11,873,360
Loan from a licensed ML 52 7 & 3%
money lending
company 10 - 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000 9,985,680
Loans from third CEYBLE
parties 7 - 1,040,000 6,119,600 - 7,159,600 5901261
Corporate bonds il 6 - - 28874383 14,200,000 43,074,383 31,447,683
100,000 22,913360 34993983 14,200,000 72207343 59,307,984
2016
“ENE
Weighted Total Total
average On Within Over undiscounted carrying
interest rate demand 1 year 25 years Syears  cash flows amounts
AR
ik Hens
FHH % EEK —fRm ZERE  BRLE BF  RESH
% HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
% % o o o o o
Creditors TR - 100,000 - - - 100,000 100,000
Loans from a director ~ EH Z H3K 6 - 1176993 - - 11769935 11237917
Loan from a licensed ~ FRMLALGE A R HER
money lending
company 10 - 105500000 - ~ 10500000 10472,569
Loans from third FJ
parties 7 = 1,806,300 7,592,800 - 9459,600 7,459,851
Corporate bonds Al 0 - - 11000000 32924384 4392438 30481054
100000 24136735 18592800 32924384 75753919 59751391
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7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(1) Risk management (Continued)

(©)

@

Liquidity risk (Continueqd)

Taking into account the Group’s financial
position, the directors consider that the
probability of exercise the redemption right of
the corporate bonds is remote. The directors
believe that such corporate bonds will be

repaid on the maturity date.

Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect
(loss) profit arising from a wide variety of
causes associated with the processes and
technology supporting the Group’s operations
either internally within the Group or externally
at the Group’s service provider, and from
external factors other than credit, market and
liquidity risks such as those arising from legal
and regulatory requirements and generally
accepted standards of investment management
behavior. Operational risks arise from all of the

Group’s activities.

The Group’s objective is to manage operational
risk so as to balance limiting of financial losses
and damage to its reputation with achieving its
investment objective of generating returns to

investors.
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7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(1) Risk management (Continued)

114

@

Operational risk (Continued)

The primary responsibility for the development
and implementation of controls over
operational risk rests with the Board. This
responsibility is supported by the development
of overall standards for the management of
operational risk, which encompasses the
controls and processes at the service providers
and the establishment of service levels with

the service providers, in the following areas:

*  requirements for appropriate segregation
of duties between various functions, roles

and responsibilities;

* requirements for the reconciliation and

monitoring of the transactions;

* compliance with regulatory and other

legal requirements;

J documentation of controls and

procedures;

*  requirements for the periodic assessment
of operational risks faced, and the
adequacy of controls and procedures to
address the risks identified,;

e contingency plans;

. ethical and business standards; and

. risk mitigation, including insurance where

this is effective.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 # % —F—LHF T+ H =1+—HILF &

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(1) Risk management (Continued)
(d) Operational risk (Continued)

The directors’ assessment over the adequacy of
the controls and processes in place at the
service providers with respect to operational
risks is carried out via regular discussions with
the service providers and a review of the
service providers’ reports on internal controls,

where available and practicable.

(2) Fair value measurement of financial
instruments

(a) Fair value of the Group’s financial assets

and financial liabilities that are measured
at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period. The
following table gives information about how
the fair value of these financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined (in
particular, the valuation techniques and inputs
used).

Annual Report 2017 4E#

7. BAE R B E

) JEpEE
()

@w@

M4

5@”/‘1’}: (#)

S0 Al U B AR S AL E
HEAT B 3 DL R % B AR 5 it
JRE B 2 TR A (A
Je w47 o 5P Al MR S A4k HE R
TR A R 7 By 2 B
T A o

) £mTHZAREMGR

@

1A 3 PE I DL 2 A AR A T
2 AR5 B R B
A5 A A

T A5 R R > AR R T
MHEEMMBAREAR
AR - T R4 A B
o] i 5 7% < P 55 L % B S
BN REEZ ER (L
I I A 6 5 il B i A B
) o

115



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ok o B 285 A Bk

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # % —ZF—LHF+ - H=+—H I &

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 7. BA®EBES B (4)

(2) Fair value measurement of financial Q) SmTHRZARBEME R (&)
instruments (Continued)
(a) Fair value of the Group’s financial assets (@) HEFPERIED L 2 AE MG
and financial liabilities that are measured 2 I [ B A R B
at fair value on a recurring basis AEARMEE (4)
(Continued)
Valuation Significant Relationship of
Fair value  technique(s) unobservable the significant input
Financial assets Fair value as at 31 December hierarchy and key input input(s) for fair value
AREE AR Y ER BRATBE BARBEHEEX
o 9 REZAZ—RZARRHE £31 LNt LN S LYN ¢ ¥4 ]
2017 2016
—ZF—LF ZE N
Financial assets Listed equity Listed equity
designated as held investments investments
for trading in Hong Kong in Hong Kong
— Tech Pro — Tech Pro Level 1 Quoted market bid ~ N/A N/A
Technology Technology price in an active
Development Development market
Limited Limited
(stock code: 3823) (stock code: 3823)
HKS$nil HK$3,244,656
— State Energy — State Energy Level 1 Quoted market bid ~ N/A N/A
Group  Group International price in an active
International Assets Holdings market
Assets Holdings Limited

Limited (Formerly known as”
(Formerly known “Takson Holdings

as “Takson Limited")
Holdings (stock code: 918)
Limited”) HK$707,840
(stock code: 918)
HK$465,920
KEAREREZ  REBLTRARE REEEHRARE
S
—EE R — LR R WG b2 AEA A
BRARAF BRARAH BARE
(Befr g 3823) (M Uit 3823)
Fil i 3,244 6564 T
-EREMEBEE —EEEERREE $-% WG 2 A AL
BRI PEIRA IR/ v BARE

(AR (oA — P PE (IR (56—
AR AT ]) RARAT )

(B 1R : 918) (B 918)
465,920i 7t 707 840% 7T
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 # % —F—LHF T+ H =1+—HILF &

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

2

instruments (Continued)

Fair value measurement of financial

(a) Fair value of the Group’s financial assets

7. PRk

BH ()

) £mTHRZARMBEMR &)

(@) LR T D 2 A A it

and financial liabilities that are measured 7 2 NI R EE R
at fair value on a recurring basis AEL R EME ()
(Continued)
Valuation Significant Relationship of
Fair value  technique(s) unobservable the significant input
Financial assets Fair value as at 31 December hierarchy and key input input(s) for fair value
AR 6T P EL BARTBE B R TR
o 5 ¢ REZA=F—RZAREE £ 31 LNt LNt LN ¢ >4 ]
2017 2016
% b ~F R
Financial assets Unlisted corporate Unlisted corporate
designated as at bond bond
FVTPL in Hong Kong in Hong Kong
— China Partners — China Partners Level 3 Discounted cash flow Risk free rate 1.04% 10% increase (decrease)
Consultancy Consultancy method combined (2016: 1.02%) in risk free rate would
Limited Limited with interest rate result in (decrease)
HK$4,806,000 HK$4,501,270 model increase in fair value
by (HK$3,000) and
HK$2,000 respectively
(2016: decrease
(HK$5,398) and
increase HK$5,409
respectively).
RE R TN RE A A TR I LTl
ARG 2 & il AR
i EUIN T il FeR ONCE I Eﬁfﬁiﬁ%u@% MEBRFIRL04  MEERA FH
FRAT ARAR RS EE (ZF—AE: (B)10% ﬁ’%ﬁl"
4,806,000 1 4,501,270 70 1.02%) REEM (D)
@000 c) &2,000
ey
SRR D
(5,398¥7C) S
5,400 T ©
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22 /N 7, 23
w3 A 5 ik P
For the year ended 31 December 2017 # % —ZF—LHF+ - H=+—H I &
7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(2) Fair value measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)

(a) Fair value of the Group’s financial assets

7. WA EREE B a)
2 TR ARMEME R (7)

(@) FLAEH T L 2 A (A it

118

and financial liabilities that are measured o2 I B B A R B
at fair value on a recurring basis AEANRMEME (4)
(Continued))
Valuation Significant Relationship of
Fair value  technique(s) unobservable the significant input
Financial assets Fair value as at 31 December hierarchy and key input input(s) for fair value
AR 6T P EL BRATBE HARBEHEEX
o 5 ¢ REZA=t—RZARBE £ 31 LNt LNt LYN ¢ >4 ]
2017 2016
i ~F R
Financial assets Unlisted equity Unlisted equity
designated as at investments in investments in
FVIPL overseas overseas
— E-Com —E-Com Level 3 Income approach Discount rate 10% increase (decrease)
Holdings Pte. Ltd. Holdings Pte. Ltd. — in this approach, ~ 17.42% in discount rate would
HK$18,424,082 HK$14,028,043 the discounted cash ~ (2016: 17.80%) result in (decrease)
flow method was increase in fair value
used to capture the by (HK$1,706,155) and
present value of HK$2,145,539
the expected future respectively
economic benefits (2016: decrease
to be derived from (HK$1,520,972) and
the ownership of increase HK$1,917,425
investee. respectively).
Discount for lack  10% increase (decrease)
of marketability in DLOM would result
(‘DLOM") in (decrease) increase
11.48% in fair value by
(2016: 13.42%) (HK$260,557) and
HK$260,579
respectively
(2016: decrease
(HK$247,774) and
increase HK$247,782
respectively).
TRE B A ER 3 E ] M E T
AR BB Bt A % ARG
—E-Com —ECom HZ=H WAB—TEMTTE  BEBE7.4% FEBLASEM (B 2)10%
Holdings Pte. Ltd. ~ Holdings Pte. Ltd. TOMAMRRE  (CE RS = UG
18,424,082 7t 14,028,043 G WEERBEZR  17.80%) () B (1,706,155
B AR W 70) }2,145,5301 7
He 2 I AR (2=l
i 2 BLH - (1,520,972 70) &
11917 4258 TT) -
WESEMBE  RESEABEE (5
([REFRME D1 & EHAAH
#1)11.48 {EA R CBD) S
(CF A (260,557 70) I
13.42%) 260,579 7T
(2=l
(247,774 78) S K
247,782 ) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 # % —F—LHF T+ H =1+—HILF &

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(2) Fair value measurement of financial

7. R BB o)
Q) &mLHEZARMBEMEGE (&)
instruments (Continued)

(@) LA T L 2 A (A it

(a) Fair value of the Group’s financial assets

and financial liabilities that are measured 7 2 NI B R B R
at fair value on a recurring basis AN REME ()
(Continued)
Valuation Significant Relationship of
Fair value  technique(s) unobservable the significant input
Financial assets Fair value as at 31 December hierarchy and key input input(s) for fair value
AR 6T P EL BARTBE B R TR
o 5 ¢ REZA=F—RZAREE £ 31 LNt LNt LN ¢ >4 ]
2017 2016
% b ~F R
Financial assets Unlisted equity Unlisted equity
designated as at investments in investments in
FVIPL overseas overseas
— Vaca Energy, LLC  — Vaca Energy, LLC Level 3 Income approach# 2016: Discount rate  2016: 10% increase
HKS$nil HK$5,869,751 — in this approach,  19.14% (decrease) in discount
the discounted cash rate would result in
flow method was (decrease) increase in
used to capture the fair value by
present value of (HK$112,931) and
the expected future HK$133,460
economic benefits respectively.
to be derived from
the ownership of
these investees.
Market approach# 2016: DLOM 2016: 10% increase
— in this approach,  49.63% (decrease) in DLOM
guideline public would result in
company method (decrease) increase in
was adopted to fair value by
compare the prices (HK$1,070,262) and
at which other HK$1,070,258
similar listed respectively.
companies and
adjusted to reflect
the specific
circumstance of the
investments.
Annual Report 2017 4E# 1 1 9
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 # % —ZF—LHF+ - H=+—H I &

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(2) Fair value measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)

(a) Fair value of the Group’s financial assets

7. AR BEE PR )

2) &M THRZARBEMGE (&)

(@) FLAEH T L 2 A (A it

and financial liabilities that are measured o2 I B B A R B
at fair value on a recurring basis AEANRMEME (4)
(Continued)
Valuation Significant Relationship of
Fair value technique(s) unobservable the significant input
Financial assets Fair value as at 31 December hierarchy and key input input(s) for fair value
R 00 e 2 BAATBE BARBEMEKX
g 9 REZA=tT—HZARBE £31 LNt LN S i\ B2 2 B 4R
2017 2016
“F -t “F Ak
R RIEA R RS i TSN LT
EfEF A JRe A & WA B g
BB EE

— Vaca Energy, LLC
Fi#T

— Vaca Energy, LIC % =%t
5,809,751 7t

#  Vaca Energy, LLC had a license of oil
leases permit to operate. The lease was
valued using income approach. In 2016,
Vaca acquired 20% ownership in an oil
operator company, which was valued

using market approach.

120

LN S
o FI R BB BL &
R B HER
BT A R E
e Z B AR
gtz BH -

Tk —
o RS AR
AR DB
i b AR
RS A AR L
%W&%Z%/ﬁ i
i

e

#**/\ JEBL 5
BO)10% G
1 SEE A (5D) 5

ma12931i70) K
133,460 JC °

19.14%

SEOAR CENERERR

AR (6
Dy10% EEFUARIE
{EA R (D) K
(1,070,262 70) &
1,070,258% G ©

49.03%

Vaca Energy, LLCHEH
— {3 AR B AR ]
e o AH B Bk A A Al
HoMm_F—N4&E>
Vaca I i — Z A i
B A FE20% M HEA
i BEUNEIE? i iR AN
S AEE
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Ao o1 B 5 A P

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # % —F—LHF T+ H =1+—HILF &

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(2) Fair value measurement of financial

instruments (Continued)

(a) Fair value of the Group’s financial assets

and financial liabilities that are measured
at fair value on a recurring basis
(Continued)

Valuation processes of the Group

The management of the Group reviews the
estimation of fair value of the investments in
unlisted equity and corporate bond which are
categorised into Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy. Fair values of these unlisted
investments are determined by the
management with reference to the valuation
reports prepared by an independent
professional valuer. Discussion of the valuation
process and results with the management is
held twice a year, for the Group’s interim and

annual reporting.
During the year ended 31 December 2017 and

2016, there were no transfers between financial

instruments in Level 1, 2 and 3.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 # % —ZF—LHF+ - H=+—H I &

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 7. BA %5 i\ b 48 B (4)
Fair value measurement of financial ) &WITHEZNREMAEE &)
instruments (Continued)
(a) Fair value of the Group’s financial assets (@) FLABHPERED, o 2 (E A AT
and financial liabilities that are measured 2 NI B 5 B
at fair value on a recurring basis AEANRMEME (4)
(Continued)
Fair value hierarchy I T AE [ 55 K
The following table provides an analysis of R MR A LA
financial instruments that are measured REEFTEZ &M TR
subsequent to initial recognition at fair value, Mr ($ A B AE 2 v] Bl 5 Fe
grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree B RE—EE5) »
to which the fair value is observable.
2017
"Rk
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
5 5o CEPY it
HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$
7 o 7 i
Financial assets 1§34
Financial assets at FVTPL: WARBEFABRZ MR
Listed equity investments EiikARE 465,920 - - 465,920
Unlisted equity investment F LA E - - 18,424,082 18,424,082
Unlisted corporate bond FEMAR R - - 4,806,000 4,806,000
465,920 - 23,230,082 23,696,002
2016
S
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
5% B =4 gt
HKS HKS HKS HKS
BT T BT T
Financial assets 5 5
Financial assets at FVTPL: WARBEE ARG Z MHERE:
Listed equity investments LiigkARE 3,952,496 - - 3,952,496
Unlisted equity investments F bR AR E = = 19,897,794 19,897,794
Unlisted corporate bond LA B - - 4,501,270 4501,270
3,952,496 = 24,399,064 28,351,560
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 # % —F—LHF T+ H =1+—HILF &

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(2) Fair value measurement of financial

instruments (Continued)

(b)

()

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value

7. AR BEE PR )

2) £ THRZARBEMGR (&)

(b) B =HA A R

measurements

2017 2016

i S “E-NE

HK$ HK$

it 7 oo

At 1 January r=A—H 24,399,064 25,055,044
Disposal of unlisted equity investment HEE ERARE (5,869,751) =
Acquisition of unlisted corporate bond TEE F ETA R 2,200,000 5,000,000
Redemption of unlised corporate bond AR E AN (2,200,000) -
Unrealised gain (loss) recognised in profit or loss G RER 2 A BB (B8 3,352,230 (5,457,400)
Exchange gain (loss), net MEsieds (BR) 1,368,539 (198,574)
At 31 December REZA=+—H 23,230,082 24,399,064

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets
and financial liabilities that are not
measured at fair value on a recurring
basis (but fair value disclosure are
required)

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and
financial liabilities recognised in the
consolidated financial statements approximate

their fair values.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 # % —ZF—LHF+ - H=+—H I &

8.

124

REVENUE AND NET OTHER INCOME,
GAINS AND LOSSES

An analysis of revenue and net other income, gains and

W g B A WA ~ Wi g % s 4
1

W i Ao HG AL A ~ i i % i R TR E

losses is as follows: Bran T :
2017 2016
ZE—LH INAE
HK$ HKS$
N ESTH T
Revenue: W 25
Bond interest income BEH AU A 718,333 350,000
Net other income, gains and  H AU A ~ W #5 & s 18 3514 -
losses:
Income from office sharing A B I A E 2 A 453,864 196,881
Exchange gain (loss), net BE bo Uk 45 (518 148 1,405,523 (194,389)
Interest income *'J B A 81 =
Sundry income HEIWRA 100 38,450
1,859,568 40,942
SEGMENT INFORMATION o BE B
Business segments ESiTig ]
During the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, the EE _E —LFEN_FE—NFE+

Group’s revenue and net loss were mainly derived from
interest income, net realised loss on disposal of financial
assets designated as held for trading, net unrealised loss
arising on revaluation of financial assets designated as
held for trading, net unrealised gain (loss) arising on
revaluation of financial assets designated as at FVTPL and
(loss) gain on disposal of a subsidiary. The directors of
the Company consider that these activities constitute one
business segment since these transactions are subject to
common risks and returns. Given that the nature of the
Group’s operation is investment holdings only, it is not
considered meaningful to provide a business segment

analysis of operating loss.

A=+—HILFEENRX, Zlié%lglztlﬁzﬁé
&Eﬁi‘ FHEIFEERAMEBWRA - HE
BERFFEHEZMBEEZ OB
ERFHE BB AFEEE W
GEEMEAZ REHBERTFHE &
fhi 4% 8 AUAEE F A B 25 2 B & 7
FEEZ KRB H I (BE18) 1F 58 & &
Mg ARl 2 18 (lss) - A AR #EH
TR Ry MR R 5 32 B T A [ JL R A
A LR E R R 5% 5 R R —
THEBMH - ERALEHZ E—KE
HEHRESER R EERY %

BB EEzEAK-
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Ao o1 B 5 A P

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # % —F—LHF T+ H =1+—HILF &

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. AR @)
Geographical segments i I 43 38
The Group’s segment assets and liabilities, which AREBENZ T BERE KAE (B

%ﬁA BB LM AR EER AR
it 2 P B E A AR R AR
75) A T G o AT AN

represent furniture, fixtures and equipment, financial
assets at FVTPL, unsecured borrowings and corporate
bonds for the year, analysed by geographical markets, are

as follows:

2017
—L4E

United

States
Singapore of America Hong Kong Total

5 B2
T & B At
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Segment assets Vig 82953 18,424,082 - 6,456,839 24,880,921
Unallocated assets R4y Bl ¥ B 36,436,463
Total assets & e A 61,317,384
Segment liabilities Vi BEN - - 59,207,984 59,207,984
Unallocated liabilities 43 Bt £1 & 1,535,312
Total liabilities £ 5 1A 60,743,296

2016
e AN S

United

States
Singapore  of America Hong Kong Total

M B2
3 G AR Uk o
Segment assets o IR 14,028,043 5,869,751 10,947,202 30,844,996
Unallocated assets Ko ELE E 30,646,811
Total assets B AUE 61,491,807
Segment liabilities AR - - 59,651,391 59,651,391
Unallocated liabilities N =R 1,461,471
Total liabilities B fERE 61,112,862
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 # % —ZF—LHF+ - H=+—H I &

10.

126

LOSS ON DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 10.
The Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with the purchaser (“Purchaser”) in December 2017 to
dispose of its 100% equity interest in Bounce Up
Investments Limited (“Bounce Up”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary which held 3.31% equity interest (the
“Interest”) in Vaca Energy, LLC (“Vaca”), at a
consideration of HK$1,500,000 (“Disposal Transaction”).
The Disposal Transaction was completed on 29
December 2017. The loss arising from the disposal of

Bounce Up was calculated as follows:

i & BB 2 ] s 4R

AEBMP _F—-LEF+ _AHHEEF
(TAF DT L EER®RLE —HME2E
WAHMB AR FEREEARAR ([§
B ) 2 100% HE 4 (5 Vaca Energy,
LLC ([Vaca |) 23.31% M T #E 25 ([ HE
#1) ) > U £1,500,000% 7T ([ 8
Ry - HMEZXGHHN_F—LFE+
AT JuH B e 8 B B i 2 28 2
WEEET R

HK$
SN
Net asset disposal of: 8 & A A
Financial assets at FVTPL s AEEFT AR 2 I G = 5,907,726
Total consideration received in cash BB 4 2 R (1,500,000)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary H B i A ) 2 s 4R 4,407,726

EAGLE RIDE INVESTMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED J& J; % 2 IR A5 FR A 7]



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 # % —F—LHF T+ H =1+—HILF &

11.

LOSS FROM OPERATIONS 11. 2 )EHE
2017 2016
—ER L4 T —INE
HK$ HK$
Loss from operations has been A<\ & #E A A JE Al 4F A 5 18 75
arrived at after charging KINBR (FEA) T 9 & %15
(crediting): e
Auditor’s remuneration 2% S ) 360,000 330,000
Investment management fee WG 1,279,580 1,154,140
Depreciation of furniture, ML~ B R 2 s
fixtures and equipment 1,308,517 1,308,517
Exchange (gain) loss, net BEE 58, (e 2 ) s 48 13 (1,405,523) 194,389
Net realised loss on disposal BB E AR E E 2 5
of financial assets HE 2 O &R B 1H T A
designated as held for
trading - 6,618,694
Net unrealised loss arising on HAGIEE R EE E 2 BB
revaluation of financial & i R A 2 ok 5 B 1R
assets designated as held 4
for trading 3,486,576 28,025,472
Net unrealised (gain) loss HAGIEE AR A REEFA
arising on revaluation of B WMBEEEEZ
financial assets designated REEBL (Ui ) B 18
as at FVTPL (3,332,230) 5,457,406
Operating lease rentals in THEE 2 BEHA S
respect of:
— premises — Y 8,965,314 8,360,877
— office equipment — W= A 44,100 42,000
Directors’ remuneration and M E & B T
staff costs:
— salaries, allowance and — ¥ra - B R HEAEY
other benefits in kind & Al 11,692,467 12,109,683
— contributions to MPF — SRR wh il 3k
Scheme 179,048 197,709
Annual Report 2017 44 127



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 # % —ZF—LHF+ - H=+—H I &

12. FINANCE COSTS 12. W% H
2017 2016
e Sl w2 e St
T PN
Interests on: FE -
Loans from a director w2 B 635,443 667,935
Loan from a licensed money
lending company Fi U 2 A &K 1,013,111 1,772,569
Loans from third parties BT 3,129,533 388,651
Corporate bonds ke 3,016,629 2,688,576
7,794,716 5,517,731
13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 13. B3 B B X
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the T B AR B LA 5% WA A8 A B 2 A w T RE R
estimated assessable profits for both years. ol i F 4% B %2 16.5% wH A
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made F 7 A 4 [E A 5% A {1 A R Sl 28 AT {] B
for both years as the Group did not have any assessable R I | A e S
profits. T I A5 B0 A L B A
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Ao o1 B 5 A P

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # % —F—LHF T+ H =1+—HILF &

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled
to the loss before tax per the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as

follows:

13. IS BB 3% ()
A A BT 15 A B S B A A 1R AR M oA A
T U % 26 2 BB AT s R R AR

2017 2016
—F b4 TN
Loss before tax bR B il s 18 (45,248,621) (76,815,200)
Hong Kong Profits Tax 7 s MG BB #£16.5%

calculated at the rate of 16.5% (

TR N 1165%) 5HE

(2016: 16.5%) Z BiIH (7,466,022) (12,674,509)
Tax effect of expenses not ANAT N8B 32 2 B B

deductible for tax purpose 1,746,780 10,622,202
Tax effect of income not taxable #FZHFRFLULA Z B 52 28

for tax purpose (776,111) (708)
Tax effect on temporary o e BB T IR 2= B 2 B Y

differences not recognised 176,089 174,155
Tax effect on tax losses not o Tl 5 B TE e 48 2 BT e 2

recognised 6,319,264 1,878,860

Income tax expense for the year 4 [N 715 i B 32

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
estimated unrecognised tax losses of approximately
HK$212,638,000 (2016: approximately HK$174,679,000)
to set off against future taxable income. No deferred tax
asset is recognised in respect of such tax losses carried
forward as the realisation of the related tax benefit
through future taxable profits could not be reasonably
assessed. The tax losses do not have expiry date under

the current tax legislation.
The Group had no material unprovided deferred tax

liabilities at the end of the reporting period (2016:
HK$niD).
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 # % —ZF—LHF+ - H=+—H I &

14. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 14. EHWN &
Disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383 of the MR 45 b T A R - 7 Uk 4 ) Ak ] S 622
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, Cap. 622 and Part 2 383Mk I v ) (B 87 # 4 A 45 EORL) B
of the Companies (Disclosure of information about o565 250 e it an T -

Benefits of Directors) Regulation, are as follows:

(a) Directors’ emoluments and other benefits (a) 7 FHM A S I A
For the year ended 31 December 2017 ®E_F—-Lt#HE+_H=1+—H
IR 4EJE

Salaries,  Employer’s
allowance and  contributions
other benefits to MPF  Discretionary Total
Fee in kind Scheme bonuses  emoluments
EEAR S S L EAiE
e HuEmEs  ZEEM AR AN 4

HK$ HKS$ HK$ HKS$ HKS$
Executive director HiTHES
Chan Yiu Pun, Clement 37 - 1,056,000 18,000 88,000 1,162,000
Non-executive directors  FEHITE S
Hu Haisong B 2,400,000 - - 200,000 2,600,000
Tung Shu Sun (Chairman) — H 45 (£ ) 960,000 - - 80,000 1,040,000
Independent non- NE TR &

executive directors

Gui Shengyue AN 360,000 - - 30,000 390,000
Wang Xianzhang TEE 360,000 - - 30,000 390,000
Vichai Phaisalakani AERH 300,000 - - 25,000 325,000
Total emoluments 4 4% 4,380,000 1,056,000 18,000 453,000 5,907,000
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 # % —F—LHF T+ H =1+—HILF &

14. EEMWE )
(a) HHME KGN (2)

14. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments and other benefits
(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE_F-AFT_HA=+—H

Salaries,

allowance and

1k 4F

Employer’s
contributions

other benefits to MPF  Discretionary Total
Fee in kind Scheme bonuses emoluments
Heowpk  mlEes
g HMEwEM  ZEFER WL AL 4 4%
HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$
BT BT BT BT BT
Executive director TS
Chan Yiu Pun, Clement B A = 1,056,000 18,000 88,000 1,162,000
Non-executive directors ~ FEHTHH
Hu Haisong AL 2,400,000 = = 200,000 2,600,000
Tung Shu Sun (Chairman) 5T (F ) 960,000 = = 80,000 1,040,000
Independent non- B FRiTES
executive directors
Gui Shengyue A 360,000 = - 30,000 390,000
Wang Xianzhang IFE 360,000 = = 30,000 390,000
Vichai Phaisalakani FEAH 300,000 = = 25,000 325,000
Total emoluments e 4,380,000 1,056,000 18,000 453,000 5,907,000

There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
the year (2016: HK$nil).

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the directors as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss

of office.

No other significant transactions, arrangement and
contracts in relation to the Company’s business to
which the Company was a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year (2016:
HK$nil).
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 # % —ZF—LHF+ - H=+—H I &

15. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 15. h B Y & 08 B
The five highest paid employees of the Group during the AEBT AR =4%E
year included three directors (2016: three directors), H(ZE-NFE=ZLHEF)  HEM
details of whose emoluments are set out in Note 14 b R E SR EEL4 o HER WA (Z
above. The emoluments of the remaining two (2016: two) TN W4 B R B R I
highest paid employees who are not a director of the (EARFER) T :

Company are as follows:

2017 2016
e
HK$ HK$
Basic salaries and other benefits & 78 #r 4 K HAth 45 F1 2,160,000 2,256,000
Discretionary bonuses P15 16 41 160,000 188,000
Contributions to MPF schemes i f& 4 it # fik 3¢ 36,000 36,000
Total emoluments P 4 48 A 2,356,000 2,480,000
2017 2016
—bfE SEAR
No. of No. of
Emoluments bands P <5 i 55 employees employees
& B 8 H g 8 % H
HK$nil to HK$1,000,000 F W I8 %£1,000,000%5 7T 1 -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T % 1,500,000 7C 1 2
2 2
During the year, no remuneration (2016: HK$nil) was SRR > A A2 (B A 4 1) AT 0] s 3 A b
paid by the Group to any of the highest paid individuals AT 4 (T — N4 BT
as an inducement to join the Group or as compensation VE BT 5| in A2 4 [ 2 48 4 ol o bk #li
for loss of office. 4 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 # % & —

15.

16.

17.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued)
During the year, no share options to subscribe for
ordinary shares of the Company were granted to
employees under the Company’s share option scheme
(2016: nib).

DIVIDENDS
No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary
shareholders of the Company during the year, nor has
any dividend been proposed since the end of the year
(2016: HK$niD).

LOSS PER SHARE
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the

following data:

tHEF+_A=Zt—HIEFE

15.

16.

17.

h¥mmeEE )
A ARIEA L E R R R AL

1%%&%@% B A 7 B 8
By (TN )
Jbe B

fﬁmﬁﬁfﬁﬂﬂ%ﬂ()ﬁﬁi@%ﬁdﬁﬁ
] B BT A AN\ B AR (
—INAE E W OT)

e M R
A A FHEAT B A 5 5 A B 8 e
RTIHRER VAT AR RS AG

2017 2016
—F L —FNRE
# T T
Loss for the purpose of basic Hi sl 5 5 /it 5 A 5 8 Z 5 8
loss per share
Loss for the year attributable to A</ & #EAT A EAL 47 I 5 18
owners of the Company 45,248,621 76,815,200

Number of shares J&& 3 B H
Weighted average number of AfERt A REAERZ
ordinary shares for the - JE I HE - 1

purpose of basic loss per

share

1,694,799,880 1,528,752,773

The weighted average number of 1,694,799,880 (2016:
1,528,752,773) ordinary shares for the purpose of basic
loss per share has been increased due to the placing of
shares on 3 August 2017.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 # % —ZF—LHF+ - H=+—H I &

17. LOSS PER SHARE (Continued) 17. HRER ()
The amounts of diluted loss per share are the same as W_E—-LELZF—-RNE+T A
basic loss per share as there were no potential dilutive = H S 1 R AT 2 T A
ordinary shares outstanding as at 31 December 2017 and 78 B > Wi s 4 Ml 4R < R B A i
2016. A M EAR R -

18. FURNITURE, FIXTURES AND EQUIPMENT  18. 15 {f - % B K i ffi

Leasehold Furniture Office
improvements and fixtures equipment Total
ML %05 HIREE N R At
HK$ HKS$ HK$ HK$
e It I Ly
COST B
At 1 January 2016, 31 December 2016, R _F—AHE—H—H - ZF—N%
1 January 2017 and 31 December FZAZET BB LA
2017 —“HER-Z—t&+_-A=+—H 4,860,954 826,148 1,040,636 6,727,738
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND 2t # K Wi i
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2016 WEZ—AF—H—H 2,032,853 357,397 535,535 2,925,785
Charge for the year AAE 1R 972,191 165,230 171,096 1,308,517
At 31 December 2016 and NZF—AE+-H=1—H
1 January 2017 k-Z—tHE—H—H 3,005,044 522,627 706,631 4,234,302
Charge for the year AR AR 972,190 165,229 171,098 1,308,517
At 31 December 2017 R-Z—tHE+H=+—H 3,977,234 687,856 877,729 5,542,819
CARRYING AMOUNTS IR 1
At 31 December 2017 R-Z—tHE+_H=+—H 883,720 138,292 162,907 1,184,919
At 31 December 2016 RZF-AREFZA=1—H 1,855,910 303,521 334,005 2,493,436
During the year, the directors of the Company considered AR AR T EE SRR A R~ 2
that no impairment loss is required for the furniture, BERSRRENTE (ZF N F %
fixtures and equipment (2016: HK$nil). #T)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 # % —F—LHF T+ H =1+—HILF &

19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 19. # A REER ABEZMBEER
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS FE
2017 2016
—EF—L4 ZE N
HK$ HK$
T SN
Non-current assets: I B E
Financial assets designated as at 4§ & 4% /A R B EHFT A H %
FVTPL 2 W
— Unlisted equity investments ~— — &M IE b 17 A &
in overseas 18,424,082 19,897,794
— Unlisted corporate bond — REHF LA RES
in Hong Kong - 4,501,270
18,424,082 24,399,064
Current assets: B E

Financial assets designated as 5 7& A FifEFH & 2 MBS & &
held for trading
— Equity investments listed — A FEE BT A E
in Hong Kong 465,920 3,952,496

Financial assets designated as at 4§ & &% /A REEF ABE Z

FVTPL A5 B
— Unlised corporate bond — REWIE LA RMES
in Hong Kong 4,806,000 -
5,271,920 3,952,496
No financial assets designated as held for trading are M F5 € S5 % f’F B 2 W A R
pledged to the securities brokers (2016: HK$nil). TR FRAL (ZF— N4 R IT)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 # % —ZF—LHF+ - H=+—H I &

19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

The Group had the following investments:

136

At 31 December 2017

19. & REMEG AR Z M5 E

B ()
REFEBEA N2 HE :

R_-Z—-t&#E+-A=1+—H

Dividend
Unrealised Net assets  received/
Effective gain (loss) Fair value/ attributable receivable
Place of registration/  Number of shareholding  Carrying arisingon  Exchange market to the during
Notes  Name of investee company incorporation shares held interest amount revaluation gain value investments  the year
ERAS
it It B HHH ZAEH WS AREE/  WRES FRCk/
Wik EREEATAR il /A #H B B TR Wi OBd) Wik WHEE BEFH ERRE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS$ HK$ HK$
it it it it it i
Unlisted equity investment
FEiRARE
(a) E-Com Holdings Pte. Ltd. Singapore 1,259,607 23.70% 14,028,043 3,027,500 1,368,539 18,424,082 3,395,000 -
E-Com Holdings Pte. Ltd. Hmg
Unlisted corporate bond
F bt A %
(b) China Partners Consultancy Limited Hong Kong - - 4,501,270 304,730 - 4,806,000 N/A N/A
P AKAEAERAT i AR TEM
Listed equity investments
LR AR E
(© Tech Pro Technology Development Cayman Islands
Limited 17,634,000 0.22% 3,244,656  (3,244,656) - - 2,202,695 -
EERHERARAR 25
(d) State Energy Group International Assets  Bermuda
Holdings Limited
(Formerly known as “Takson
Holdings Limited”) 896,000 0.12% 707,840  (241,920) - 465920 77,612 -
B SR B PR E A A A TR
(HTR [ — B R AR AR D)
3,952,496 (3,486,576) - 465,920
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 # % % —

19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

tHEF+_A=Zt—HIEFE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

9. A REMETAEHGEZMEE
FE (4

At 31 December 2016 BEF—RNET_HA=+—H
Net assets Dividend
Carrying  Unrealised (liabilities) ~ received/
Effective amount/  loss arising Fair value/  attributable  receivable
Place of registration/ Number of  shareholding Purchase on  Exchange market to the during
Notes  Name of investee company incorporation shares held interest cost  revaluation  (loss) gain value  investments the year
EXLT L 1453
P f A REES ZREHR B AAEES  EEEE FRER/
Wit ERREAFAAR /S AL S B WA BelEREs  BARA BROOER)IRE  THEE (REDFE  ERRE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
T T T o T T
Unlisted equity investments
F L AR E
(a) E-Com Holdings Pte. Ltd. Singapore 1,259,607 2370% 18401582 (4,170,675  (202804) 14028043 3,115,160 -
E-Com Holdings Pte. Ltd. Hngk
(e) Vaca United States of America 1,322,343 331% 6,653,462 (788,001) 4290 5809751  (3,420,943) -
Vaca FHE 5
25,055,044 (4958,670)  (198574) 19,807,794
Unlisted corporate bond
F i a5
(b) China Partners Consultancy Limited Hong Kong - - 5,000,000 (498,730) - 4,501,270 N/A N/A
BAkAEHHRAH Eil TR il
Listed equity investments
LA %
() Tech Pro Technology Development Cayman Islands
Limited 17,034,000 027% 31,212,180  (27,967,524) = 3,244,656 2,114,814 -
LR R RARAR kg
(d) State Energy Group International Assets  Bermuda
Holdings Limited (Formerly known
as “Takson Holdings Limited”) 896,000 0.12% 765,788 (57,948) = 707,340 48,639 =
I Al A L S A PR TAE
(RS [ — R RA L))
31,977,968  (28,025,472) - 395249
Notes: B 3E -
(a) E-Com Holdings Pte. Ltd. (“E-Com”) is a private company (@)  E-Com Holdings Pte. Ltd. ([E-Com ] ) A

incorporated in Singapore, which is principally engaged in the

provision of Chinese

e-learning platforms for primary school

students in Singapore and other Asian regions. No dividend was

declared or received during the year (2016: HK$nil).

For the year ended 31 December 2017,

the unaudited

consolidated net profit was approximately $$581,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$3,297,000) (2016: audited consolidated net
profit approximately S$171,000, equivalent to approximately
HK$998,000). As at 31 December 2017, its unaudited consolidated
net assets were approximately S$2,450,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$14,326,000) (2016: audited consolidated net
assets approximately S$2,452,000, equivalent to approximately

HK$14,337,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 # % —ZF—LHF+ - H=+—H I &

19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

138

(b)

©

At the end of the reporting period, the Group held more than
20% of the effective shareholding interest in E-Com. The
investment in E-Com was not accounted for as associate as the
Group does not have any significant influence over the financial
and operating policies in E-Com or participate in the policy-
making processes. Accordingly, investment in E-Com has been

designated upon initial recognition as a financial asset at FVTPL.

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the carrying amount of the
Group’s interest in the shares of E-Com exceeded 10% of the
total assets of the Group.

China Partners Consultancy Limited (“CPC”) is a private company
incorporated in Hong Kong, which is principally engaged in the

provision of consultancy services.

The Group has invested in a 14% coupon unlisted bond of
HK$5,000,000 issued by CPC on 11 July 2016 and due on 11 July
2018. It derived a bond interest income of HK$700,000 during the
year (2016: HK$350,000). CPC has the right to redeem the
corporate bond at any time before the maturity date with at least
5 clear business days in written notice. For the year ended 31
March 2017, the audited net liabilities of CPC was approximately
HK$882,000 (2016: approximately HK$57,000).

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the carrying amount of the
Group’s corporate bond issued by CPC is less than 10% of the
total assets of the Group.

Tech Pro Technology Development Limited (“Tech Pro”) (Stock
code: 3823) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability and its shares are listed
on the Stock Exchange. It is principally engaged in the
manufacturing and sale of LED lighting products and accessories,
provision of energy efficiency projects, promotion and
development of a professional football club, and provision of
property leasing and sub-leasing services.

19. & REMEG AR Z M5 E

B (4)
R} 5E - ()

(b)

©

A K > A 4 B 35 A E-Com A R I
HEE 25 #8 1820% i E-Com M & A& A
HI% 2% BRI W ) 18] 45 A 45 [ 1 E-Com 11 B4 B¢
To 45 8 R R A AT B K B s 2 L
PR TR - 92 UL > Y E-Com Y % & ) IR e

I A E 2 1 8 AU R AR 4R 2 BB
s

—tbERENEF A=+
H> Z’-‘%ﬁ@E—ComHﬁ%%ﬁZﬁEEﬁﬁ
A AE BB EE10% ©

\#

*@A@(A'@yﬂ]ﬁﬁﬁ/\ﬂ [ & kA
L) s S 7 o R R SL 2 FAN Y
A ’/E\:Ig{/’é$ﬁ%ﬁﬁ]ﬂﬁ7f§§°

A% 45 ] 2 1% 45,000,0009 TG 7 B A 1k A
WHR ZF—NEL A+ — B TR
ZFE -/ EEA T+ HEI 2 14% 5B
TR SR o LA AR R AR B R R Bl A
700,000% 76 ( —Z— 7N 4E © 350,000% 70 )
B A kN SR A RE A B AR AT ] g
M DA D W 4 26 H 2 o T A A ]
AfEE - HE-F-LE=H=+—HIE
AERE S AR N R 2 5 %ﬁﬁé@@%‘ﬁ
#882,000% 7o ( = & — /N 4F :
HK$57,000) °

o —EER - E-REF =+ —
H ZIK%@EA*IAU(}\@JHJ% SN
E%Zﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁi@ﬂ‘%ﬂ@m ﬁ@lO% °

FEAE R B R AR AR ([58% ] BEAt
55 1 3823) i B 2 BE B Gk i 2 MR e
AR EAT A A) > F B B 5 BT bl o B
T AR R KO8 B LED OB E o K
P~ R LB RETE B - 4 R R B R Bk
(Y SHAVYNE S/ E LN -9 Tl &7 T
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 # % —F—LHF T+ H =1+—HILF &

19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

For the six months ended 30 June 2017, the unaudited
consolidated net loss attributable to owners of Tech Pro was
approximately RMB59,636,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$68,963,000) (31 December 2016: audited consolidated net
loss approximately RMB271,747,000, equivalent to approximately
HK$316,832,000) and the basic loss per share was RMBO0.81cent
(equivalent to HK0.92cent) (31 December 2016: RMB4.14cents,
equivalent to HK4.83cents). As at 30 June 2017, the unaudited
consolidated net asset value was approximately RMB832,322,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$999,294,000) (31 December
2016: audited consolidated net assets approximately
RMB718,322,000, equivalent to approximately HK$801,568,000).

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the carrying amount of the
Group’s interest in the shares of Tech Pro is less than 10% of the

total assets of the Group.

(d)  State Energy Group International Assets Holdings Limited
(Formerly known as “Takson Holdings Limited”) (“State En
Assets”) (Stock code: 918) was incorporated in Bermuda as an
exempted company with limited liability and its shares are listed
on the Stock Exchange. It is principally engaged in the sourcing,

subcontracting, marketing and selling of outerwear garments and

sportswear products, and property investments.

For the six months ended 30 September 2017, the unaudited
consolidated net gain attributable to owners of State En Assets
was approximately HK$28,620,000 (2016: approximately
HK$2,173,000) and the basic earnings per share was HK3.80
cents (2016: HKO0.28 cent). At 30 September 2017, the unaudited
consolidated net asset value was approximately HK$67,166,000

(2016: approximately HK$42,093,000).

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the carrying amount of the
Group’s interest in the shares of State En Assets is less than 10%

of the total assets of the Group.
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AE [ [ 2 AT N A R S A% 4 A ik
% 1 #H 428,620,000 76 ( ZF — N4 4
2,173,000% 70 ) Kz B I 5 4 7 F) 53,8011l
WM (T — IS 028l ) o i =%
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 # % —ZF—LHF+ - H=+—H I &

19.

140

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(e)  Vaca is a private company incorporated in USA which principally
engages in the crude oil and natural gas exploitation,
development, production and operations in California, USA. No
dividend was declared or received during the year (2016:
HK$nil).

In December 2017, the Company entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with the Purchaser to dispose of Bounce
Up, which held the Interest in Vaca. The details of the Disposal
Transaction are set out in Note 10 of the financial statements.

The investments in unlisted equity investments and
unlisted corporate bond at 31 December 2017 and 2016
were, upon initial recognition, designated by the Group
as financial assets at FVTPL. The financial assets at FVTPL
which are managed and their performances evaluated on
a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s
investment strategy. Their performances are regularly
reviewed by the key management personnel of the

Group.

The fair values of unlisted equity investments and
unlisted corporate bond were determined by the directors
of the Company with reference to the professional
valuation carried out by Peak Vision Appraisals Limited,

an independent qualified professional valuer.

The market value of listed equity investments are
determined based on the quoted market bid prices
available on the Stock Exchange at the end of the

reporting period.

Details of the fair value measurement are set out in

Note 7 of the consolidated financial statements.
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Ao o1 B 5 A P

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # % —F—LHF T+ H =1+—HILF &

20. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 20. HAth BB Wk ~ ¥ 4 B FE AT sk H
PREPAYMENTS
2017 2016
— L4 RN
Note HK$ HK$
o # i
Non-current asset FEW B &
Rental deposit HE%S 2,372,498 2,372,498
Current assets B & E
Other receivables HE R R a 2,628,552 410,138
Rental and utility deposits 4 MK B % 4 128,970 124,170
Prepaid services fee TA AT W5 2 399,324 730,135
3,156,846 1,264,443
Note (a): Includes in the brokers’ accounts of HK$60,219 (2016: [k :  SBAIRT 60,2198 0 ( ~F — N
HK$60,138) which is restricted for use and held by A1 60,1385 0 ) B & BR il 45 A
collaterised securitization vehicles in segregated deposit T8 ST AT R IS R ZR L
fund. THe
21. CASH AND BANK BALANCES 21. Bla Ko7 45 8k
2017 2016
—bBE BN
HK$ HK$
Deposits with banks SRATAE K 30,876,053 20,991,249
Cash in hand J A7 Bl 4 31,066 18,621
30,907,119 27,009,870
Included in cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated LEMBIRNERNZ RS MR EEE
statement of financial position are the following amounts Y6145 S 2 DA 4E B E A BE Th R B e
denominated in a currency other than the functional PLANE W EHE 2 4%

currency of the group entity to which they related:

2017 2016
—E L& TN
RMB N 684 684
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Ao 1 B A P R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # % —ZF—LHF+ - H=+—H I &

22. CREDITORS AND ACCRUED EXPENSES 22, FE ATk IH K T it & H
2017 2016
L
HK$ HK$
Accrued expenses TE#RE 1,435,312 1,361,471
Other payables Al JBE A5 BRI 100,000 100,000
1,535,312 1,461,471
i
23. UNSECURED BORROWINGS 23. JEIRAT AR B
2017 2016
—E L& ZE RN
Notes HK$ HK$
Kt aF #ot o
Current liabilities =R
— Loans from a director — EH K a 11,873,360 11,237,917
— Loan from a licensed — FrRLUE A F B
money lending
company b 9,985,680 10,472,569
— Loans from third — B HEK
parties c 1,007,113 1,702,285
22,866,153 23 412,771

Non-current liability Ik Ui By £ 5
— Loans from third — B = EK
parties @ 4,894,148 5,757,566

27,760,301 29,170,337
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Ao o1 B 5 A P

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # % —F—LHF T+ H =1+—HILF &

23. UNSECURED BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(O)

Loans from a director

The loans included loans advanced of approximately
HK$10,591,000 (2016: approximately HK$10,591,000) and loan
interest payable of approximately HK$1,282,000 (2016:
approximately HK$647,000). The loans were obtained from a
director, The Ultimate Controlling Party, on an unsecured basis,
bearing fixed interest at 6% per annum and repayable within one
year. The Ultimate Controlling Party has confirmed that he will
not demand repayment of the loans until the Group is financially
viable to make the repayment.

Loan from a licensed money lending company

The loan is due to an independent licensed money lending
company, bearing fixed interest rate at 10% per annum for a term
of one year. The effective interest rate is 10.47% (2016: 19.12%)
per annum.

Loans from third parties
The loans are due to independent third parties, bearing fixed
interest rate at 6% to 8% (2016: 6% to 8%) per annum for terms

of one to five years. The effective interest rate is in the range of

8.78% to 19.03% (2016: 8.78% to 19.03%) per annum.

An analysis of unsecured borrowings presented based on the

repayment terms is as follows:

23, KA E )

Fff 53

(a)

(b)

(©)

HR%

R

W B

BARE S IR B A10,591,000% 0 (=&

— NAE 1 £710,591,0009 78) K R A 2 B K

FIE #71,282,0000 JC ( =& —NF 1 4

647,000%5 7G) © 2R H S (e BT ) 1

A S R B 5 7 [ 2 AT 6% w1 R
BRI — A N AE R o A A B FE B RS AT

AE 3 1 78 K T AT dn 4 4 T O e R I R €
BORALE IR -
3 L A 2 ) Bk

B B 8 7 A R S > 4 T AR A
F10% wh B B 7 B — 4F o B R AF R R 7y
10.47% ( —F—7N4F 119.12% ) °

=05 B

BEH B AR = > P AR 6 8%
(ZF—INF 6% 28%) st B KA —F
FAF o B BRAT R % £58.78% £19.03% (%
—NAF 1 8.78% 3£19.03% ) ©

AEHE N 2 LM B INE

At At
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
/A S s 3 /e SN S
+=A=+—H  +=A=+—H
HK$ HK$
# T Wt
The carrying amounts of the above DL b SRR R MR T A
borrowings were repayable:
Within one year —4EN 22,866,153 23,412,771
Within a period of more than one year % — 4 A {H R £ %8 /i 4 14
but not exceeding two years 983,610 968,627
Within a period of more than two years % /i 4F A {H R £ 48 45 14
but not exceeding five years 3,910,538 4,788,939
27,760,301 29,170,337
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Ao 1 B A P R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # % —ZF—LHF+ - H=+—H I &

24. CORPORATE BONDS 24. A W] 1*#
The corporate bonds recognised in the consolidated R sR A& B R R Z A R E S HF
statement of financial position were calculated as follows: B -
Unlisted Unlisted Unlisted Unlisted
bond bond bond bond
“BondI”) (“BondII”) (“BondIII”) (“Bond IV”) Total
FEwfEr  kbwifiz  JEbRWfE kLW
(Mg ly (I ly (TfZFmrl) (MfEFw ) At
HKS$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
note (a) note (b) note (¢) note (d)
B 3E M 5E (b) B 3E (o) FEE ()
At 1 January 2016 WoEZ—XRFE—H—H 9,434,719 2,255,492 8,502,267 = 20,192,478
Principal value of the Bond ARV 2 A 1A
on initial recognition - - - 10,000,000 10,000,000
Direct transaction costs HER G A - - - (1,050,000) (1,050,000)
9,434,719 2,255,492 8,502,267 8,950,000 29,142,478
Effective interest expenses TERE AR B 32 964,515 244,419 903,683 575,959 2,688,576
Interest paid ALE S At (500,000 (150,000 (700,000) - (1,350,000
At 31 December 2016 and m= T*Tifiﬁ =+—H
1 January 2017 F_F—tFE—N—H 9,899,234 2,349,911 8,705,950 9,525,959 30,481,054
Effective interest expenses HIEFI E\ BH 52 1,014,435 254,995 926,078 821,121 3,016,629
Interest paid ALE S AT (500,000) (150,000) (700,000) (700,000) (2,050,000
At 31 December 2017 REZF-LEFZA=Z1—H 10,413,669 2,454,906 8,932,028 9,647,080 31,447,683
The effective interest rate of the Bond I, II, IIT and IV are B 10 11 KXV 2 B B 255 Al 5
10.43%, 21.58%, 10.73% and 8.85% per annum 10.43%, 21.58% f210.73% }8.85% °
respectively.
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Ao o1 B 5 A P

For the year

ended 31 December 2017 % ~ZF—L4F+ A =+—HILFH

24. CORPORATE BONDS (Continued)

Notes:

(@

()

(©

From previous year, the Company issued an unsecured corporate
bond to an independent private investor through the placing
agent at a principal amount of HK$10,000,000 with effective date
from 29 January 2015 which is repayable on the date falling 3
years from the date of issue of the corporate bond, which is 29
January 2018 (the “Maturity Date I”).

Bond 1 carries a fixed interest rate at 5% per annum payable
annually in arrears on 29 January in each year (“Interest
Payment Date I"), provided that the first Interest Payment Date
I shall fall on 29 January 2016 and the final repayment of the
interest shall be on the Maturity Date 1.

From previous year, the Company issued an unsecured corporate
bond to an independent private investor through the placing
agent at a principal amount of HK$3,000,000 with effective date
from 17 March 2015 which is repayable on the date falling 7
years from the date of issue of the corporate bond, which is 17
March 2022 (the “Maturity Date II").

Bond II carries a fixed interest rate at 5% per annum payable
semi-annually in arrears on 17 March and 17 September in each
year (“Interest Payment Date II"), provided that the first
Interest Payment Date II shall fall on 17 September 2015 and the
final repayment of the interest shall be on the Maturity Date II.

From previous year, the Company issued an unsecured corporate
bond to an independent private investor through the placing
agent at a principal amount of HK$10,000,000 with effective date
from 15 July 2015 which is repayable on the date falling 7 years
from the date of issue of the corporate bond, which is 15 July
2022 (the “Maturity Date III").

Bond III carries a fixed interest rate at 7% per annum payable
annually in arrears on 15 July in each year (“Interest Payment
Date III"), provided that the first Interest Payment Date III shall
fall on 15 July 2016 and the final repayment of the interest shall
be on the Maturity Date III.

Annual Report 2017 4E#

24. AVEF ()

B -

(a)

()

(©

A4 > A4S F] 75 1 i 6 12 ) — 44 M8 ST
AN E AT T A 42 810,000,000 TG
MM 2 AEfESFE R FE—LFE—H
A JUHAER BE T A RS A=A

FAMAAL-F - NFEF—-HZ+ILH
(r#gy eI 1)

B 5 1 4% [ 58 4F B 385% w1 5L > LS R 4R
—HZPILH M (TMBERMFHEL]) %8
—HFEfZREIE R ~F—/NE—H
U H ST B g A% R AR R A 2 A
Hi1 4t

B AR A )i ot e B AR 1) — 44 08 T
AN G BEAT T A8 42 853,000,000 0 4
Bz AfESR R oF—hnF=H+t
HA R B 84T B BAREFH 2 3 L 45 > 3 1
HA -2 - _F-"H+tH (T8IMA
ml) -

R 0 % 8] 5 4F A1) 26596 51 R FILER B4R
ZRA+ERRILA £ R REESA (T

BAFSKHAIID) > 8 —HFLEAT 3 H n 2 it
SR —FAENA £ B XA R AR R
IR H 1 Ao

B AR A ) i At e B A 1) — 44 08 5T
A& AT T A 42 %10,000,000%5 I
MM 2 AEfESFE R = FE—LFE LA
T H B AR BT B AL
FMAB -F__FLHTHH (TEMH
Hir )

15 5 10 4% [8] 52 48 F] R 7% w8 > FE R &
FE AR A A (TR A3 B )
55— A B A ElHIﬂ%’fﬁAéi*/\ﬁib
A+ 1B S Ko s A R B A A
2 4 -

145



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao 1 B A P R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # % —ZF—LHF+ - H=+—H I &

24. CORPORATE BONDS (Continued)

146

Notes: (Continued)

(d)  During last year, the Company issued an unsecured corporate
bond to an independent private investor through the placing
agent at a principal amount of HK$10,000,000 with effective date
from 13 April 2016 which is repayable on the date falling 7 years
from the date of issue of the corporate bond, which is 13 April
2023 (the “Maturity Date IV”).

Bond IV carries a fixed interest rate at 7% per annum payable
annually in arrears on 13 April in each year (“Interest Payment
Date IV”), provided that the first Interest Payment Date IV shall
fall on 13 April 2017 and the final repayment of the interest shall
be on the Maturity Date IV.

On initial recognition and subsequent measurements, the directors of
the Company consider that the principal amount of Bond I, 11, III and
IV approximate to their fair values.

The Company has the right to redeem the outstanding principal
amount, in whole or in part, of Bond II, IIl and IV at any time before
the Maturity Date II, III and IV (the “Redemption Rights”) with at
least 5 clear business days written notice, but the bondholders have no
right to require the Company to redeem Bond II, III and IV before the
Maturity Date II, III, and IV. The Redemption Rights are regarded as
embedded derivatives in the host contract. The Redemption Rights are
not recognised in the consolidated financial statements since the
directors of the Company consider that the probability of exercise of
the Redemption Rights are remote. The directors of the Company have
assessed the fair values of the Redemption Rights at initial recognition
with reference to the professional valuation carried out by Peak Vision
Appraisals Limited, an independent qualified professional valuer, and
consider that the fair values were insignificant. Accordingly, the fair
values were not accounted for in the consolidated financial statements
as at 31 December 2017 and 2016.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 # % —F—LHF T+ H =1+—HILF &

25. SHARE CAPITAL 25. kA
Number of
ordinary
shares of
Note HK$0.0125 each HK$
5 Mt T
0.0125%# T
i ZEEREA T
Authorised: HiE
At 1 January 2016, 31 December ~ P ZZF—AHFE—~H—H -
2016, 1 January 2017 and “EF-AFEFZA=EF—H
31 December 2017 “F—-tF-A—-A K
“E—tHET-H=Z1T—H 80,000,000,000 1,000,000,000
Issued and fully paid: CHRITRHR:
At 1 January 2016 mZF—AF—H—H 1,500,058,784 18,750,735
Placing of shares it & fix 118,000,000 1,475,000
At 31 December 2016 and REF=RNETA=Z1—HkK
1 January 2017 “F—tE-HA—H 1,618,058,784 20,225,735
Placing of shares P i a 185,500,000 2,318,750
At 31 December 2017 RE-Z—tEFZA=+—H 1,803,558,784 22,544,485
During the year, the movement in the Company’s share N AR AV A Z SEE) a0 R
capital is as follows:
(@) On 3 August 2017, 185,500,000 ordinary shares of Q@ —FEF—tH#FNA=ZH BKiE
HK$0.25 placing price per share were issued under & #ro.254 3tz E 1 B &
the general mandate. Net proceeds of approximately 185,500,000 % & 48 By © #& — i
HK$45,444,000 have been successfully raised PR REBE AT o %8 3 Wi R Th S AR Py
through the placing. 15 3K TE 13 #HA945,444,000%5 T °
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Ao 1 B A P R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # % —ZF—LHF+ - H=+—H I &
26. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES FROM  26. @l & i 8) & 2k & & 0 3R

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities T RFEA S A SE E A R I B
arising from financing activities, including both cash and AR EEE OiEH e KRB a8
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing HoMEFEHEAMABRIERAL
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future BB &hieRIELHMETEEE S
cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated Tt ) B U BOR AR B T
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing
activities.
Unsecured Corporate Share Share
borrowings bonds capital premium Total
G 5 B Al [iZN Bt i A
HKS$ HK$ HKS$ HK$ HK$
T I T I I
(Note 23) (Note 24) (Note 25) (Note 35)
(Kf3E23) (Bit5E24) (BiE25) (Ff5E35)
At 1 January 2017 WoF—tHE—H—H 29,170,337 30,481,054 20225735 629,525,998 709,403,124
Changes from financing cash Pl B4 T )
flows:
Corporate bonds interest paid 7 "l &% 2 & 3 A - (2,050,000) = - (2,050,000)
Loans interest paid BEFOR B A (3,356,987) - - - (3,356,987)
Net proceeds from issue of #4715 I 15 4
shares - - 2,318,750 43,125,014 45,443 764
Net proceeds from unsecured K {8 65 7 15 5K JH
loans 48,948,864 - - - 48,948,804
Repayment of unsecured A SO £
loans (51,780,000) - - - (51,780,000)
Total changes from financing il B < O 1 A ) M
cash flows (6,188,123) (2,050,000) 2,318,750 43,125,014 37,205,641
Other change: Hit s :
Interest expenses (Note 12) A E BT (FftE12) 4,778,087 3,016,629 = = 7,794,716
At 31 December 2017 RE-F—bHE+-H=+—H 27,760,301 31,447,683 22,544,485 672,651,012 754,403,481
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 # % —F—LHF T+ H =1+—HILF &

27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 27. W B HE R

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
was adopted by members of the Company on 22 May
2015. The purpose of the Scheme is to reward and
provide incentives to eligible participants and encourage
them to contribute to the Group. Under the Scheme, the
Board may at their discretion, at any time following the
date of the adoption of the Scheme but before the tenth
anniversary of that date, grant share options to eligible
participants, including directors of the Company and its
subsidiaries and any other persons including consultants,
advisors, agents, customers, suppliers, etc. to subscribe

for shares in the Company.

The exercise price of share options is the highest of the
nominal value of the shares, the closing price of the
shares on the Stock Exchange on the date of offer of the
grant and the average closing price of the shares on the
Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of offer of the grant. An offer of an
option shall be deemed to have been accepted within 30
days from the date of offer upon acceptance of the
option duly signed by the grantee together with a
remittance of HK$1. The maximum number of securities
available for issue under the Scheme shall not exceed
10% of the issued capital of the Company. The maximum
entitlement of each grantee in any 12-month period is
limited to 1% of the ordinary shares in issue of the
Company. The option period will not be more than ten
years from the date of grant of the option and the Board
may at its discretion determine the minimum period for
which the option has to be held or other restriction
before the exercise of the subscription right attaching

thereon.

During the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, no

option was granted, exercised or cancelled.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 # % —ZF—LHF+ - H=+—H I &

28.

29.

150

NET ASSET VALUE PER SHARE 28.
As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the net asset value

per share of the Company was HK$0.0003 and HK$0.0002
respectively. The calculation of net asset value per share

is based on the net asset value of the Group as at 31
December 2017 of approximately HK$574,000 (2016:
approximately HK$379,000) and on the number of
1,803,558,784 ordinary shares of HK$0.0125 each in issue

as at 31 December 2017 (2016: 1,618,058,784 ordinary
shares of HK$0.0125 each).

5 5 & e A

WoE—LER EFE—NE+ A
=t —H - ARAZEREEFMEHS
Al £50.0003#5 7€ % 0.0002 T » & B &
FEFEEALE? _F—LF+ 2
H=+—H Z & 7E i§ (H 41574,000% 7T
(= F— N 4F 1 £9379,000% 70 ) M it —
E—tLHE+_HA=+—HEBITHK
T {EL0.0125%5 JC 191,803,558, 7845 #H %
(ZF—IN4F B R M E0.0125% T HY
1,618,058,7845 48 I ) 5154 -

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 29. ME R AN
The Group as lessee AR SR WA Ty 7 LA
2017 2016
e Sl e 2 —F—NE
HK$ HK$
# T
Minimum lease payments paid  4F A gL T 7110 H R 45 & & HE)
under operating leases during E At Z AR 4
the year:
— Premises — Y 8,965,314 8,360,877
— Office equipment — WS E R 44,100 42,000
9,009,414 8,402,877
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 # % —F—LHF T+ H =1+—HILF &

29.

30.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
(Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases in respect of rented

premises and office equipment which fall due as follows:

29. BEMMA RS &)

T S 39 R > A 4 AR 4 A T SR A€
CRRIEIIN S/ V& YN 3 VN
V& 2 RAR RS 4L B H #2040 F

Premises Office equipment
LE S PN

2017 2016 2017 2016

ZE—LE —F-ARF ZE—LE TR

HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$

WL T T o

Within one year — N 8,875,913 8,850,028 44,453 44,100
In the second to fifth FOEFEHFE

years inclusive (BIEHREME) 3,468,129 11,780,271 - 44,453

12,344,042 20,630,299 44,453 88,553

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by
the Group for its premises and office equipment.
Operating leases are negotiated and payments are fixed

for an average term of 2 years.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS 30.
At the end of the reporting period, no margin facility
(2016: HK$niD) from a regulated securities broker was
granted to the Group under which financial assets at
FVTPL of approximately HK$466,000 (2016:
approximately HK$3,952,000) were treated as collateral

for the facilities granted. No margin facility has been
utilised by the Group at 31 December 2017 (2016: nil).
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 # % —ZF—LHF+ - H=+—H I &

31.

32.

152

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Defined benefit plan

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees
employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to
the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject
to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000 (2016:
HK$30,000). Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

The total costs charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income in the
sum of approximately HK$179,000 (2016: approximately
HK$198,000) represents contributions payable to the MPF

scheme in Hong Kong.

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

(a) Transactions
The Group had the following significant related
party transactions during the year which were
carried out in the normal course of the Group’s

business:

31.

32.

A8 P A 3
I8 Pk 2w

A 45 B AR 4 A s o T S TR S R
191 4% R R 15 91 T B 2 (B B 2 I & v
si il AR SR E ([ 4&ah3))

o A 4w E 0 35t ORIREE B B
SR Z LN IR TR R A ET ) B
F R HAR BZH%& B At 18 B AH B IR A
15% i w5 # A > R A AH B A Ik A
30 oooi%ﬁ: (=& — N4 30,0009

o W% wl B LK B RE4Z T o

T e 18 4 e H Al 2 T i i R AT BR

YA BEEE £)179,00048 7T ( F—NAE
#1198,000%% 7T ) > B ZH i 75 s m) o F 4

at 8 S A 2 K

R 3 75 B o

@ %5
A S B N FE A SR B H O
AR AT T 1 E KR B RS

5

Name of related party Nature of transaction 2017 2016
I5H 34 5 44 25 E —F b5 —E R
HKS$ HK$
# U # T
Fortune Legendary Investment management fee
S SR (Note 1) 1,279,580 1,154,140
BEEE (MDD
The Ultimate Controlling Party Loan interest expenses
(Note 2) 635,443 667,935

T A ) D7 BRI S B S (B aE2)
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32. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (Continued)

€))

Notes:

@™

@

(b)

Transactions (Continued)

Pursuant to the investment management agreement dated 27
March 2014 made between Fortune Legendary and the Company,
the Company pays Fortune Legendary an investment
management fee for the period from 13 May 2014 to 4 July 2017
payable monthly in advance at 2% per annum of the net asset
value of the Company on the basis of the actual number of days
elapsed in the relevant month.

On 5 July 2017, the Company entered into the supplemental
agreement with Fortune Legendary to revise the fee to a monthly
fixed investment management fee of HK$185,000 for the period
from 5 July 2017 to 31 December 2019.

Fortune Legendary is deemed to be a connected party of the
Group pursuant to Rule 14A.08 of the Listing Rules.

The loans from a director were unsecured and repayable on or
before the maturity date with fixed interest rate at 6% per annum.
Details are set out in Note 23(a) of the consolidated financial

statements.

The transaction is exempted from the connected transaction

requirements under Rule 14A.90 of the Listing Rules.

Balances
At the end of the reporting period, the amounts due

to related parties are as follows:

32, B YEE )

€))

(B

@

@

(b)

R (#)

AR5 Bt 4 M B N A BT AT S M —
TWEZHA - +EH 2 REE
EUNGE AL 3 SETE s Lt o
—E-WERAF=HAE-E L L
AU E 4% FLAR S > A A
N TV TR B 2 4E 2% » L A A B E
FE AR 2 T K B8

R —EEEALH AL E B E A
MRS k> h —F—LELAHA
EoF-NET A=+ BRI
B PR BT 5 I8 7 4 H 185,0008 T

HRAE b A BB HI14A.08 > B & 25 W0
By AR S5 ] 2 E Ty

R 2RO MR AR LT R R A s
I AE 22 > $% [ 8 4F 1 2R6% wH S, o 5 7t ik
i A BRI EE23) ©

AR 1 717K IR HI14A. 003 BR 72 22 5 11

Ko M5 S E TR

2017 2016
—ZE—L4 ZE IR
Name of related party Nature of balance HK$ HK$
i 3y 4 & B MR e BT
The Ultimate Controlling Party Loans and interest incurred
from a director 11,873,360 11,237,917

e K 2 AR AR
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32. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (Continued) 32. BT PR (4

(c) Compensation of key management personnel () FEHFHABHIME
Remuneration for key management personnel, FEERAB ZM e (B A
including amounts paid to the directors of the TAL A E SR (I EE1457 #5R)
Company as disclosed in Note 14 is as follows: W) IE

2017 2016

—®2 b —ENE

HK$ HK$

Directors’ fee A 4,380,000 4,380,000
Salaries, allowance and other 74 ~ 7 i [ HAth B ¥ 48 F|

benefits in kind 1,056,000 1,056,000

Discretionary bonuses M fE AL 453,000 453,000

Contributions to MPF Scheme i f& 4 5t #1 {1t 3k 18,000 18,000

5,907,000 5,907,000
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33. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the subsidiaries are set out as follows:

33. i B B 2 v Z B i
A/ R 4 AT

Paid up issued/
registered
ordinary Proportion ownership interest and
Name of subsidiary Place of incorporation share capital voting power held by the Company Principal activities
wrowt/
M0 I 25 ] 4 AEIH L S0 ik 0 O A A AR A 2 A A 4 B FERH
Directly  Indirectly Directly Indirectly
Hik fi ¥ Hik fi]
2017 2017 2016 2016
—R—-bfE ZRLE CT-RE CEZRE
Gold Basin Invest Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 - 100 - Investment holdings
i 1T AR
Bounce Up Investments Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 - - 100 - Investment holdings
BESEARAR FR RS 1ET AR
King Phoenix Investments Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 100 - 100 - Investment holdings
AEHREHRA FEELTER IEH BETERK
Eagle Ride Investment Holdings Singapore S$1 100 - 100 - Investment holdings
(Singapore) Pte. Ltd. g T Bgr i
Energy Supreme Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 100 - 100 - Investment holdings
REEARS 1€ BEERK
Fortuneway Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 100 - 100 - Investment holdings
FRE RS L3 BB
Sunluck Investment Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 100 - 100 - Investment holdings
RBEARS 1L BETERK
Winning Point Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 - 100 - 100 Inactive
FREARE 1E7T R

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities

outstanding during or at the end of reporting period.
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34. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 34. A HiWi2 FHIH

156

(@)

(b)

©

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the
Group entered into a legally binding share placing
agreement with placing agents for the issue and
allotment of a maximum of 1,000,000,000 shares at
the placing price of HK$0.3 per share on a best
effort basis. Reference is made to the announcement
of the Company dated 28 March 2018 in relation to
the placing of new shares of the Company under

special mandate;

In January 2018, the Company signed an extension
agreement with the licensed money lending
company of an unsecured loan of HK$10,000,000 to
extend the repayment due date from January 2018
to January 2019, bearing interest rate of 10% per
annum, subject to the condition that the Group will
pay the entire amount of interest for the whole
extension period in the sum of HK$1,000,000 in
advance on 28 February 2018 and the said
HK$1,000,000 has been paid on that date; and

In January 2018, the Company signed an extension
agreement with a corporate bondholder to extend
the maturity date of corporate bond with principal
amount of HK$10,000,000 from January 2018 to
January 2020 and the interest rate was revised from
5% per annum to 6% per annum effective from 29
January 2018.

(@)

)

©

A B R 4% > A 4R [ B AR
ORI — M EEBRAR T 2K
3 T B T ok i B K %% ) D U 4
JBE0. 3% TC 2 e B M A% B AT M i B8
% 21,000,000,0008% 13 o B 7> Hi2 35
PRI E R R 2H5 AR R
AR E - E=ZA -+ NANHZ

A

W T — NFE— o AN A R
JE A& 2~ B E 3 — %£10,000,000%5
TG 2 SR R KA A R R
u%ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁm:%~AE~
AEERZ _F—LE—H > UF
F #10% w18 > 3l DA A< 42 [
—FE—)NFEH =+ /\HET A
#1,000,000%5 T i BE 8 4E = 1A [H]
BT EE A 2 R B A B B A s B
7% H B 34T P i 591,000,000% TG
AR s B

WZFE—NE—H> KRE A
AEAEEAAES —FEALA L
10,000,000 TG Z /A FIE 5 %5 5] 4k
EWE #aMeh T /4
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35. COMPANY INFORMATION OF FINANCIAL

POSITION

(a) Financial information of the financial position

of the Company

35. 4o ] [ 55k Ot e

(@) A2 ] BB IR UL 2 A R

2017 2016
—F—LHE TR N
HK$ HK$
o o
Non-current assets IE IR B & e
Furniture, fixtures and E N S W&
equipment 1,184,919 2,493,436
Financial assets at fair value N REEFI AR Z
through profit or loss AR & 18,424,082 18,529,313
Interests in subsidiaries Nl NG P £ - -
Rental deposits HE%S 2,372,498 2,372,498
21,981,499 23,395,247
Current assets & E
Financial assets at fair value s RfEEB R 2
through profit and loss W5 R e 5,271,920 3,952,496
Other receivables, deposits A AR R K
and prepayments T OHE 3,114,658 1,222,347
Cash and bank balances B4 S SRAT &5 B 30,790,444 26,869,223
39,177,022 32,044,006
Current liabilities %ﬁijyﬁf*
Creditors and accrued JREAsH K iR E A
expenses 1,031,312 1,031,471
Unsecured borrowings 41 1K A A K 22,866,153 23,412,771
23,897,465 24,444 242
Net current assets B A 15,279,557 7,599,824
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35. COMPANY INFORMATION OF FINANCIAL 35. A6l B R % (4
POSITION (Continued)

(a) Financial information of the financial position (@) ARXA 6 BHIRERZBHER
of the Company (Continued) (#5)
2017 2016
“E L TERINAE
HK$ HK$
T T

Total assets less current & A HE A B B A

liabilities 37,261,056 30,995,071
Non-current liabilities I i B B A
Unsecured borrowings A0 HIE H A K 4,894,148 5,757,566
Corporate bonds o AME S 31,447,683 30,481,054
36,341,851 36,238,620
NET ASSETS (LIABILITIES) ¥ j& (£ 1) ¥ 919,225 (5,243,549)
Capital and reserves A B il
Share capital (Note 25) A (FffaE25) 22,544,485 20,225,735
Reserves (Note b) it (Mfatb) (21,625,260) (25,469,284)

TOTAL EQUITY (CAPITAL HE#SBABH(EALRRE)

DEFICIENCY) 919,225 (5,243,549)
The statement of financial position was approved MBERREE R - ZF—/N4E=H
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors T U H O e M AR T
on 29 March 2018 and are signed on its behalf by: o DL N ERAREE

TUNG SHU SUN CHAN YIU PUN, CLEMENT
R E] B 2
Director Director
#HH #HH
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 # % —F—LHF T+ H =1+—HILF &

35. COMPANY INFORMATION OF FINANCIAL
POSITION (Continued)

(b) Reserve movement of the Company

35. o> ) [ 55k O e o)

(b) 2 v fif i 52 Bh

Capital
Share redemption Accumulated

premium reserves losses Total

JROVERE A Il AihE# gt

HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$

T Wt o BT
At 1 January 2016 RZF—AF—H—H 601,966,480 168,800 (602,905,625) (770,345)
Total comprehensive expenses 2T B A = = (52,258,457) (52,258,457)
Placing of shares i 8 it 17 27,559,518 - - 27,559,518

At 31 December 2016 and RZFE=AETZAZ+T—HR

1 January 2017 ZF—t%E—-H—H 629,525,998 168,800 (655,164,082) (25,469,284)
Total comprehensive expenses T = = (39,280,990) (39,280,990)
Placing of shares Jie & 1Ay 43,125,014 = = 43,125,014
At 31 December 2017 R-Z—LHEFTZH=+—H 672,651,012 168,800  (694,445,072) (21,625,260)

Capital redemption reserves was derived from the
Company by repurchase its own shares pursuant to
the approval and shall not exceed 10% of the
aggregate nominal of the issued share capital of the

Company within the relevant period.

36. COMPARATIVE FIGURES
Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to

confirm to the current year’s presentation.
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Five Year Financial Summary

A B B R

Year ended 31 December

BET-A=1+—HILFEE

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
Bk CFAE SF R DZ-NE SRS
HK$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$
W i i i i
Results E 3
Revenue 0 4 718,333 350,000 - - 495,963
Loss before tax BRBIRI IR (45,248,621) (76,815,200) (60,402,871)  (25,202,733)  (67,604,792)
Income tax expense i 15 B 3¢ - - = = -
Loss for the year AN FHEA NG
attributable to owners FENER
of the Company (45,248,621) (76,815,200)  (60,402,871)  (25,202,733)  (67,604,792)
Assets and liabilities &Rk A
Total assets HEE 61,317,384 (1,491,807 94,947,366 116,430,467 136,172,713
Total liabilities i S=Ei (60,743,296) (61,112,862) (46,787,739)  (7,867,969)  (2,420,506)
Net assets B BHE 574,088 378945 48,159,627 108,562,498 133,752,207
Share capital JEA 22,544,485 20225735 18,750,735 18,750,735 18,739,259
Reserves b5 (21,970,397) (19,846,790) 29,408,892 89,811,763 115,012,948
Total equity HE 45 BB 574,088 378,945 48,159,627 108,562,498 133,752,207
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